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Characteristics of the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”)
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Exchange”)
BEEBHEXZMBERL A ([BEA])BIZR ([BIFER]) 2K E

GEM has been established as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a high investment risk
may be attached. In particular, companies may list on GEM
with neither a track record of profitability nor any
obligation to forecast future profitability. Furthermore,
there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of
companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or
countries in which the companies operate. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk
profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities trade on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board of the Exchange and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM
is publication on the internet website operated by the
Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to
issue paid announcement in gazetted newspapers.
Accordingly, prospective investors should note that they
need to have access to the GEM website at
www.hkgem.com in order to obtain up to date information
on GEM-listed issuers.

The Exchange takes no responsibility for the contents of this
annual report, makes no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or
any part of the contents of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of
Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
the compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for
the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The Directors of the Company, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief:

(1)  the information contained in this annual report is accurate
and complete in all material respects and not misleading;

(2) there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement in this annual report misleading, and

(3) all opinions expressed in this annual report have been
arrived at after due and careful consideration and are
founded on the bases and assumptions that are fair and
reasonable.
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Corporate Profile 22 &]# 77

Founded in July 2000, Sau San Tong Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) have established itself as the leading
beauty and slimming services providers in Hong Kong and
Mainland China over the past eight years through the introduction
of a series of innovative health and beauty treatment and products
as well as the provision of the most professional and attentive
slimming and trimming solution to its customers. The Group was
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (Stock Code: 8200) in November 2003 and is
the first listed slimming and beauty company in Hong Kong.

The Group has seven beauty, slimming and spa centres with
three in Hong Kong and four in Mainland China including two in
Shanghai, one in Shenzhen and one in Hangzhou. All these
centers provide unique all-rounded personalized slimming and
beauty services, which include the VIP Slimming Programmes,
“Nursing Slimming Service”, “Pilate Self-Active Bodyline”, “Anti-
Aging” and the latest “Anaplastic Cosmetology” programmes.
Combining the effective treatments and comprehensive follow
up, all programmes enable customers to achieve their desired
skin quality, weight and body shape in the healthiest manner.

The Group has been widely recognized and highly praised for its
outstanding products and services and received numerous
accolades during the years of which included “Top Service Award”
of Next Magazine, “PRC Tourists — My Best HK Brand” by China
Enterprise Reputation & Credibility Association and “Hong Kong
Top Ten Brand Names Award” by Chinese Manufacturers’
Association of Hong Kong etc..
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To further diversify its businesses, the Group has acquired a
distribution business in Mainland China in September 2005 who
distributes P&G’s personal care products in Shanghai and cosmetic
and skin care products with famous brands like SK-II and Olay in
the eastern and western part of Mainland China. With over 2
year's development, the distribution network is well developed
and with the additions of other famous brands such as Philips,
Gillette etc., the growth of turnover as well as the number of
distribution points is impressive.

In 2006 & 2007, the Group has successfully opened two beauty,
slimming and spa centres in Vancouver, Canada and in Shenzhen,
PRC. This marked a crucial start for the Group’s new type of
business, namely, the management consultation service. The
characteristic of this business is that a fee will be received for
the using of our brand name and logo and subsequently a monthly
management fee will also be received based on the turnover or
profit of such beauty, slimming and spa centre. Unlike the
previous beauty, slimming and spa centres which required heavy
investment initially, this business model secured the Group’s
income in the first day of the project.
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Five Years Financial Summary # & 81 % #E 2

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—EENFE —ZTTLF —ZTIERF —TTRF —TTNOF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FABT FAEIT FAT FAET
(Note)
(M)
Turnover R 446,821 443,588 358,650 141,709 135,653
Cost of sales 5 & B AN (344,809) (348,164) (276,363) (18,081) (25,293)
Gross profit E A 102,012 95,424 82,287 123,628 110,360
Other revenue H 1t Y = 3,747 6,981 1,775 393 991
Other net income H fth U A F 58 980 427 6,009 16,010 3,775
Selling and distribution costs %% & % §#5 5k 2 (63,491) (65,370) (92,359) (67,048) (58,733)
General and administrative —#& & {TEF X
expenses (39,115) (45,505) (52,467) (38,427) (23,494)
Other operating expenses  H fth 4% & B &% — (7) (3,770) =
Profit/(loss) from BERF
operations (B#8) 4,133 (8,050) (58,525) 34,556 32,899
Finance costs & A A (941) (666) (144) (2) (133)
Profit/(loss) before BB AT BRR
taxation (E1]) 3,192 (8,716) (58,669) 34,554 32,766
Income tax expenses Fr 15 %1 2 (1,353) (7,231) (2,759) (3,484) (5,222)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF ~ (FE) 1,839 (15,947) (61,428) 31,070 27,544
Non-current assets kRBEE 22,987 20,228 23,562 21,941 13,970
Current assets REBEE 144,496 88,265 73,425 90,897 63,218
Current liabilities REBEE 77,443 82,553 61,300 21,479 19,140
Net current assets hBEERE 67,053 5,712 12,125 69,418 44,078
Non-current liabilities ErRBER (3,041) (232) — — (222)
Net assets EEFH 86,999 25,708 35,687 91,359 57,826
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Equity attributable to ZANYNCIE 2
equity shareholders B AEML
of the Company 25 58,141 9,072 30,356 91,401 57,413
Minority interests 3 EX 28,858 16,636 5,331 (42) 413
Total equity EHEE 86,999 25,708 35,687 91,359 57,826
Note: As a result of the correction of prior period error in respect of ffit - AR _SEZN\FEEFBABRMDNRZATHIER -

share-based payment in 2008, the fair value of the share options
granted amounted to HK$1,558,000 had been recognised in the
income statement for the year ended 31 March 2005 with a
corresponding increase in Share-based payment reserve in
accordance with HKFRS 2, Share-based payment. There is no net
effect to the net assets and or total equity as of 1 April 2005,

2006 and 2007 and 31 March 2006, 2007 and 2008.
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Chairman’s Statement F /& # &

| am pleased to present the annual results to the shareholders of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2008 (the “Year Under
Review").

In the Year Under Review, the world experienced a very interesting
and challenging year, the weakening of US dollar, the appreciation
of the renminbi, the various macro-control measures of Mainland
Authorities, the US sub-prime crisis, the turbulent stock market,
the re-appearance of inflation in Hong Kong, the snowstorms
winter in Mainland China. They all combined to form an
unpredictable effect on Hong Kong welfare as well as the brittle
economy.

However, even though in such difficult environment, the Group
still can manage to have a 1% of growth in terms of sales, from
HK$443,588,000 in the corresponding period in last year to
HK$446,821,000 in the Year Under Review.

In Hong Kong, our slimming services is highly reputed in the
slimming and beauty industry. Therefore, in the past years, we
introduced many beauty services which are recognised as high
quality and among them, some are exclusively and firstly
introduced by us, creating awareness in the industry. We targeted
to tailor made all kinds of beauty services especially for Asian
ladies, combining traditional chinese medicine science high-tech
western technology, with our professional knowledge and
techniques, we can sure to deliver the best services to our
customers. During the Year Under Review, we launched a wide
variety of services, such as Korea Ginseng Gold Spa, Bio Green
Herbal Skin Brightening. Besides, as the customers demands are
keep rising and one-stop shopping is essential to success, we
also launched cosmetological technology such as RF, injection,
lipolaser etc, providing a comprehensive solution to our customers.

For the PRC market, in Shanghai with intense competitions,
contributed by the successful marketing strategies and our
professional services, we has been locally recognised as a “Star”
brandname in Shanghai. While in Shenzhen and Hangzhou, our
centres gradually gained customer’s loyalty and established local
presence. In the coming future, benefit from the Olympic Games
atmosphere, we will open two brand new centres in Beijing,
bringing our business to summit.

During the Year Under Review, the Group’s turnover reached
approximately HK$446,821,000, compared to HK$443,588,000
during the corresponding period last year. Turnover generated
from the beauty, slimming and spa centers in Hong Kong and in
Mainland China amounted to HK$99,935,000, an increase of
8% compared to corresponding period in 2007 (HK$91,090,000).
For the product distribution business in Mainland China, the
turnover amounted to approximately HK$344,563,000, compared
to approximately HK$348,249,000 in the corresponding period
in last year.
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Chairman’s Statement F /& # &

During the Year Under Review, our Group experience a
turnaround in the financial results, from incurred substantial loss
in the past two years (2007: approximately HK$16,000,000; 2006:
approximately HK$61,000,000) to the Year Under Review of net
profit for the year HK$1,839,000, representing 112% increase.
The most remarkable achievement is our Group just about break
even and loss attributable to shareholders decrease from
HK$21,457,000 in last year to this year HK$55,000. Thanks to
the effort from all staff of our Group to boost sales and the
strict cost control implemented. The reduction in the magnitude
of loss attributable to the shareholders reflected our ability to
adapt to adverse situation which allowed us to rebound within
one year time. In the coming year, sizeable profit will bring to
shareholders from our expansion into new market and new
business segment development.

In addition to overcome various problems as mentioned above,
the Group has actively considered potential new income stream.
During the Year Under Review, we have entered into management
consultation services contracts with several investors. We provide
relevant training and tutorials to the staff of those investors to
ensure adequate and professional quality to the customers there.
In return, we receive a one-off service fee for the usage of logo
and training provided. With the success, the Group believed and
expected that such management consultation services to be one
of the major revenue drivers of the Group for the foreseeable
future.

During the Year Under Review, the Group’s beauty, slimming
and spa centers in Mainland China has shown an impressive
growth. The success of the beauty, slimming and spa centres in
Shanghai, Shenzhen and Hangzhou has also strengthen the
Group's confidence in opening new centres in the PRC and
distribution business in Guangdong province. Therefore, besides
maintaining the growth of the existing beauty, slimming and spa
centres, the Group is putting much efforts to explore possibilities
in opening new beauty, slimming and spa centres in other major
cities in the PRC, such as Beijing and Xiamen, to capture the
untapped market and to make the Group's brand to be a generally
recognized brand in the PRC.

Over the years, the “Sau San Tong” brandname is firmly
established in both Hong Kong and the PRC with services and
treatments that leads the beauty and slimming industry. During
the Year Under Review the Group was awarded “Yahoo! Emotive
Brand Award 2007", “Hong Kong Proud Corporate Brand —
Consumer Award (Personal Care Category)” by Ming Pao, “PRC
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Chairman’s Statement F /& # &

Consumers’ Most Favourable Hong Kong Brands” and “Most
Favourable Brands of the Nation” by China Enterprise Reputation
& Credibility Association, and also “The Most Influential Brands
of Slimming Services in China Market” by China Market
Consuming Tendency Research Committee in 2008, etc. All these
awards and recognitions helped the Group in strengthening its
corporate image in Hong Kong as well as in Mainland China.

The Group excelled by the ability to stay ahead of the market.
Over the years, the Group has introduced many innovative beauty
and slimming products to Hong Kong. These beauty and slimming
products enables the Group to gain additional market share as
well as strengthened its brandname. For the years to come, the
Group will continue its effort in the product distribution market,
especially in the Mainland China. At present, the Group already
has the distribution network for distributing mainly P&G personal
care products in Shanghai and P&G’s cosmetic and skin care
products, including SK-II and Olay in the eastern and western
part of the PRC. Starting from the early of 2008, we also
distributed Philips and Gillette products, diversity our product
types and upliftying our competitive edge. In near future, the
Group can utilize its already established distribution network in
Mainland China to distribute our other beauty and health
products. The management is confident that this segment of the
Group’s business will become a revenue driver in the coming
years.

Besides, for the beauty and slimming services, the Group will
continue to focus its effort in the Mainland China market which
proves to have enormous potential. The Group will continue to
provide the most professional and attentive services to its
customers and enhancing brand awareness. The management
believes the valuable experience accumulated over the years allows
our dedicated and committed management team to ride through
the challenges, continues to expand our business and maintains
the Group as one of the leading slimming services and products
provider.

On behalf of the board of Directors, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to our shareholders, customers, staff and
business partners for their support and trust to the Group. With
our persistent effort, | have confident that the Group will achieve
steady growth in the future and provide satisfactory return for
all shareholders.

Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 June 2008
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

For the year ended 31 March 2008 (“the Year Under Review"),
turnover amounted to approximately HK$446,821,000,
representing an 1% increase from approximately HK$443,588,000
in last year. Such increase was mainly contributed by the improved
performance of our beauty, slimming and spa centres in both
Hong Kong and in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
and the contribution by Shanghai Dong Fang Ri Hua Sales Co.
Ltd. (“Dong Fang”), a subsidiary of the Company since September
2005. Dong Fang is engaged in the distribution of P&G’s personal
care products in Shanghai and P&G’s cosmetic and skin care
products, including SK-II in the eastern and western part of PRC.
Turnover from such distribution business amounted to
approximately HK$344,563,000 during the Year Under Review
(2007: approximately HK$348,249,000).

During the Year Under Review, turnover generated from all the
beauty, slimming and spa centres in Hong Kong and in the PRC
amounted to approximately HK$99,935,000 (2007: approximately
HK$91,090,000). Such increment was mainly contributed by our
firmly belief in not to enter price war with others, which returned
with loss and close down. Besides, refreshing change and
diversification of products help to maintain growth in our
slimming and beauty business. Such encouraging results once
again provided a solid proof of customer’s recognition of the
Group's brand and quality.

During the Year Under Review, the Group recorded an increase
of approximately HK$6,588,000 in gross profit. In addition to
the improved turnover as mentioned above, the increased
efficiency and the recognition of income from the provision of
management consultation services (more details in the section
“Qutlook” below) have all contributed to such increase in gross
profit.

The Group has incurred a loss attributable to equity holders of
the Company of approximately HK$55,000. Nevertheless, such
loss represented a dramatic and radical reduction of 99.7% when
compared with a loss of approximately HK$21,457,000 in last
year. The impressive improvement is contributed from strategies
of exploring of new revenue stream such as management
consultation services while adopting vigorous cost control as
reflected from the substantial reduction of administrative expenses
from approximately HK$45,505,000 to approximately
HK$39,115,000 during the Year Under Review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & #2 g 5 i & 25 4T
Outlook R e 2
Beauty and Slimming Centres R R AP

For Hong Kong, the Group providing not only slimming services
but also a variety of non-slimming services. In addition to a
range of comprehensive beauty and health services and the
successfully launch of “Anti-aging program” in 2006, the Group
introduced the “Lipolaser Slimming treatment” and “Gold Facial”
medical cosmetology in late of 2007. Contributed by the advanced
new technology, we can help our customers to regain their youth
and slimness effectively and efficiency. In near future, the Group
will bring us the “Nano Cavitation Treatment”, medical
cosmetology, Chinese, Western & Thai style spa beauty
treatments. With the above-mentioned advantage, the Group is
optimistic on this new type of service which in turn will strengthen
the profitability of the Group.

For PRC, due to economic boom in the PRC and the more
awareness of health, the citizens there are more affordable and
more willing to pay for beauty and health of her own. This
benefit our beauty, slimming and spa centres, as shown by our
strong performance of our PRC beauty, slimming and spa centres.
As the Group expects the prosperity in the PRC will continue,
the Group is actively seeking opportunities to open new beauty,
slimming and spa centres in major cities in the PRC and the
distribution of beauty products in order to capture the untapped
market. In the near future, 2 brand new beauty, slimming and
spa centres will be opened in Beijing, the Capital of PRC.

Management Consultation Services

Being the leading beauty and slimming services provider, our
Group has accumulated a wealth of experience in the
management and operation of beauty, slimming and spa centres
as well as high caliber professionals from the industry. In order
to capitalize its existing resources, the Group has embarked the
provision of management consultation services for the setting up
beauty and slimming centres.

During the Year Under Review, our Group partnered New World
Group and Sinolink Group to develop clubhouses and spa beauty
centres for luxury estates in PRC. Benefit from their years of
experience in real estate market and our reputation in beauty
and slimming industry, it will become a new stream of income in
future.

The Group is confident that there will be an immense demand
for this kind of services in the PRC since the beauty and slimming
market there is still under developed with a shortage of expertise.
Also, provision of this kind of services command not much
overhead costs and thus contributing to a positive revenue growth
to the Group.

EES  AEETNMEREHBRE  TRAEZH
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lepoIaser Slimming®E 2 ] & [Gold Faciall & 2 3
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Health and Beauty Products

During the past years, the Group's ability to introduce innovative
and quality products has earned a leading status in the Hong
Kong market. Besides Hong Kong, the Group is planning the
distribution of health and beauty products to the major cities in
the PRC, with satisfactory progress. The management believes by
leveraging on “Sau San Tong” brand name and the customer
confidence built up over the prior years, these health and beauty
products will be well received in the market bringing forth an
additional revenue stream for the Group.

Distribution Business in the PRC

After the challenge of PRC authority to SK-Il brand in 2006, with
the Group’s great effort, the sales of SK-II gradually regain.
Although the contributions to turnover as well as the profit
derived from Dong Fang show only a slight improvement as
compared to those of last year, the pace and trend of recovery
are encouraging. And, the Group firmly believed that SK-II will
resume it's position in the PRC market soon. Besides of SK-II, the
Group also distributes Olay, Philips and Gillette’s products through
its well developed distribution channel during the Year Under
Review. Due to the increasing popularity and admiration of Olay
products, such product sales shows a remarkable increase when
compare to last year. We believe it will bring sizeable revenue
for the Group in near future. Looking forward, as the PRC market
continues to boom showing immense potential for P&G products,
the management anticipates the revenues generated from the
distribution business will experience further growth and will in
turn provide the Group with stable source of income.

Capital structure, liquidity and financial resources

Cash and bank balances as at 31 March 2008 were approximately
HK$50,493,000 compared to approximately HK$20,533,000 as
at 31 March 2007. The Group's gearing ratio of 26% (2007:
43%) was based on the total of bank borrowings and obligations
under finance leases of approximately HK$22,433,000 and the
net assets of the Group of approximately HK$86,999,000.

As at 31 March 2008, the Group’s liability was approximately
HK$80,484,000, compared to approximately HK$82,785,000 as
at 31 March 2007. It includes account payables and other payables
approximately HK$36,703,000 (2007: approximately
HK$39,139,000), mainly for the daily operations of our subsidiary
— Dong Fang, deferred income approximately HK$18,110,000
(2007: HK$23,415,000) and bank borrowings approximately
HK$22,131,000 (2007: HK$10,110,000), banking borrowings is
also for Dong Fang trading activities. Such liability are intended
to be financed by internal resources of the Group.

REREXBEM

RBEFE  AEERHELERIEZBEERCE
N SAKEELREMB 2REMA - REA
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Treasury policy

The Group adopts a conservative approach towards its treasury
policies. The Group evaluates the financial condition of its
customers regularly so as to reduce the credit risk. The average
outstanding days of the Group’s accounts receivable was
maintained at below 90 days. To manage liquidity risk, the Group
closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure the
liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and
commitments and to ensure that the Group can meet its funding
requirements.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Since the Group’s assets and liabilities, revenue and payments
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi,
the Groups considers that there was no significant exposure to
foreign exchange fluctuations.

Net Assets

As at 31 March 2008, the Group's net assets amounted to
approximately HK$86,999,000 compared to approximately
HK$25,708,000 as at 31 March 2007. Except for those assets
charged in the obligations under finance lease, there are no
other charges on the Group’s assets as at 31 March 2008.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2008, the Company has issued a corporate
guarantee approximately amounting to HK$16,618,000
(equivalent to RMB15,000,000) to a bank in respect of banking
facilities granted to Dong Fang, a subsidiary (31 March 2007:
HK$Nil); and has given a corporate guarantee to a finance
company in respect of the finance lease facilities for high-tech
beauty and slimming machinery of approximately HK$1,748,000
(2007: HK$1,748,000) granted to a subsidiary.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2008, the Group had 413 employees (2007:
around 433 employees). During the year, the Group’s total staff
costs amounted to approximately HK$45,079,000 (2007:
approximately HK$42,173,000). Pursuant to the share option
scheme adopted by the Company, share options have been
granted to eligible participants to subscribe for shares in the
Company under the terms and conditions stipulated therein.
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The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on the basis
of the performance and experience of individual employee and
are in line with local market practices where the Group operates.
In addition to salary, the Group also offers to its employees
other fringe benefits including provident fund and medical
benefits. The Group has a share option scheme whereby qualified
participants may be granted options to acquire shares of the
Company. There is an aggregate of 24,690,000 outstanding
options to subscribe for 24,690,000 shares of the Company
pursuant to the share option scheme as at 31 March 2008.

Significant Investments and Acquisitions

There were no significant acquisitions and disposals of investments
by the Group during the Year Under Review.

Future Plan

Going forward, in addition to the continual improvement of the
operation performance of the existing beauty, slimming and spa
centres, the Group is planning to open two new beauty, slimming
and spa centres in Beijing in July 2008. Besides, the Group will
invest more resources on beauty product distribution business in
order to enrich and diversify our business, bringing profits to our
shareholders.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile ZF Rk m R & A 5 /B FE

Directors
Executive Directors

Dr. CHEUNG Yuk Shan, Shirley, aged 33, is the Chairman and
Founder of the Group. She established the Group eight years
ago and successfully developed it to a group with over 400 staff.
Dr. Cheung is responsible for the overall stewardship of the Group
which includes directions and formulating strategies. Leading the
Group to a new height, she achieved various accomplishments
complimenting her management style and innovative promotional
strategies. Dr. Cheung received the Honour Award of the
Innovative Entrepreneur of the Year 2004 of the Hong Kong
district, organised by the City Junior Chamber in May 2004. In
November of the same year, Dr. Cheung was awarded as one of
the “100 Outstanding Women Entrepreneurs in China” by the
“Women Entrepreneurs’ Association of China”. She is also one
of the few Hong Kong awardees and one of the youngest
awarded entrepreneurs. Furthermore, she was invited to be one
of the deputy chairmen of the “China Foreign Trade Council”
and the honourary president of the “Federation of Beauty Industry
(Hong Kong)".

Mr. CHEUNG Ka Heng, Frankie, aged 35, is an Executive
Director. He is responsible for the business development and
administration of the Group. Mr. Cheung holds a master degree
in business administration from Americus University of the United
States. Prior to joining the Group in June 2002, he was the
director of Vicorp Credit Services Limited, a company which
provides credit information, commencing from September 1999.
Mr. Cheung is the elder brother of Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HONG Po Kui, Martin, aged 58, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director and joined the Group in June 2002. He is
responsible for giving advices to the board of Directors and
shareholders of the Company. Mr. Hong is a practicing solicitor
and a notary public in Hong Kong. He has been practicing as a
solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong for over 32 years and is
the senior partner of Messrs Lau, Chan & Ko, Solicitors. He holds
a bachelor degree in science from University of New South Wales.
Mr. Hong is an independent non-executive director of Simsen
International Corporation Limited and Fulbond Holdings Limited,
companies listed on the Main Board of the Exchange, as well as
the commissioner of Hong Kong Road Safety Patrol.

Mr. LI Kuo Hsing, aged 49, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director and joined the Group in June 2002. He is the Vice
Chairman of the Federation of Motion Film Producers of Hong
Kong Limited since 1998 and appointed Member of the Election
Committee for the Performing Arts sub-sector of the Legislative
Council Election. Mr. Li is the founder and chairman of Mei Ah
Entertainment Group Limited and an Executive Director of BIG
Media Group Limited, companies listed on the Main Board and
GEM Board of the Exchange respectively.

Ms. HUI Yat Lam, aged 34, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director and joined the Group in March 2008. Ms. Hui is an
associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Ms. Hui has over 10 years of experience
in professional auditing, accounting and financial management.
Ms. Hui was previously the qualified accountant and company
secretary of Long Success International (Holdings) Limited, a
company listed on GEM of the Exchange.

Senior Management

Mr. TSE Ching Leung, aged 35, is the Financial Controller,
Qualified Accountant and Company Secretary of the Group. Mr.
Tse is responsible for overseeing the accounting and financial
management and company secretarial functions of the Group.
He is an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Tse joined the Group in February 2008
and has accumulated over ten years of accounting and auditing
experience.
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Corporate Governance Report it &8 %

Introduction

The Company puts strong emphasis on the superiority, steadiness
and rationality of corporate governance. Subject to the deviations
as disclosed in this report, the Company has complied with all
the provisions in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “Code"”) as set out in the GEM Listing Rules by establishing
a formal and transparent procedures to protect and maximize
the interests of shareholders during the year.

Directors’ Securities Transaction

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM listing rules. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, they all confirmed having complied with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors adopted by the Group.

The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) currently comprises five
directors, including two executive directors and three independent
non-executive directors. The Board is mainly accountable to the
shareholders. It is also in charge of the management, business
strategy, annual and interim results, risk management, major
acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions and other major
operational and financial aspects of the Group. Major corporate
matters that are specifically delegated by the Board to the
management include the preparation of annual and interim
accounts for board approval before publishing, execution of
business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board,
implementation of adequate systems of internal controls and risk
management procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory
requirements and rules and regulations.

Details of backgrounds and qualifications of the members of the
Board are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management
Profile” of this annual report. All Directors have given sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Group. Each executive
director has sufficient experience to hold the position so as to
carry out his duties effectively and efficiently.

The Board fulfilled the minimum requirement of appointing at
least three independent non-executive directors throughout the
year. It also met the requirement of having one independent
non-executive director with appropriate professional qualification
or professional accounting or financial management expertise
throughout the year.
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Each of the independent non-executive directors have entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term expiring on
31 July 2007, with the term being renewed for a further term of
one year commencing from 1 August 2007.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each of the independent non-executive directors and
therefore still considers them to be independent.

Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie, an executive director, is the elder
brother of Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley, the chairman. Save as
diclosed above, there is no relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship) among
members of the Board.

During the year, the Board held four meetings. The details of the
attendance rate of each director are as follows:

EBUHNFEFRAATTERELL - CHE
—EELELA=+-ARR HABEHEES
—F m-TTLE/\A B -

AAFDEESBIFNTETZIFERRE - B
WINREEED BB

MITEFRREEERIFEREMEL 2R - B
EXFEEESN  EFESKEHLEE MK

(BEM® 2% REIEMEKR HEBER) -

RAFE  EFERRTHAEH - 5
EHEMT :

Attendance at

Board meeting Attendance rate

Name of directors EEpE EESHERH HE=

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley %Eifﬂﬂﬁir 4/4 100%

Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie ZEEE 3/4 75%

Mr. Lee Man Kwong ?Kﬁ:f’ﬁi (RZZFZTNF 3/4 75%
(retired on 19 March 2008) =R+ NBRME)

Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin B B 5T A 3/4 75%

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing 2 B AR A 3/4 75%

Mr. Ho Yiu Ming (deceased on MBBEEE(R_ZEZTLF 3/4 75%
9 December 2007) + = A LH &tt)

Ms. Hui Yat Lam ARt (R-_ZTNEF 0/4 0%
(appointed on 10 March 2008) —At+BEZT)

Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer 3R AT A

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley assumes the role of both the
chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company. While
serving as the chairman of the Group, Dr. Cheung leads the
Board and is responsible for the proceedings and workings of
the Board. The role of chairman and chief executive officer of
the Group rests on the same individual which deviates from the
Code of not having a clear division of responsibilities.

The Board is of the view that it is in the best interests of the
Group to have Dr. Cheung, who is the founder of the Group
with vast and solid experience in the beauty sector, to perform
the dual role so that the Board can have the benefit of a chairman
who is knowledgeable about the business of the Group and is
most capable to guide discussions and brief the Board in a timely
manner on pertinent issues. With Dr. Cheung being the chief
executive officer, the Group can also benefit from having strong
connection and network in the beauty market.

REMBT L HRARA ZEFE RITHAEE M E R
o RIBE—NHEEREETE ST HEIE
REFS AREFEZERFTHERIE - AKH
ZERRARBHEA—ARE  BNLEEES
FEBE @ MiEEETa -

EXERn BRBL (AKEZEHRA  EXF
XBREBEELERR) gRmB - B ESIREY
AEBEBERARB 2 mb - RITERE A #
FRMERREFSHEN B RIFLH®R - FH
BAREZ&ENG - ARBIEETHRAER - &
SETAESREAMB RN ERRBE 258
& o

EFEERERAT ZOONEFH 21



Corporate Governance Report it E 8 &
Audit Committee HFEZA T
The Company has established the Audit Committee in compliance AN&EE D BRAIZEIR EHEAF5.28 5331628

with Rules 5.28 and 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are: to independent review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control
systems, to ensure good communications among Directors and
the Company’s auditors, to recommend the appointment of
external auditors on an annual basis and approval of the audit
fees, to assist the Board in oversight of the independence,
qualifications, performance and compensation of the independent
accountant, to review quarterly, interim and annual results
announcements as well as the financial statements prior to their
approval by the Board, to provide advice on audit report,
accounting policies and comments to all Directors.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors including Mr. Li Kuo Hsing (Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin and Ms. Hui Yat Lam.
During the year, the Audit Committee held four meetings to
assess the effectiveness of internal control system, to review all
draft annual, quarterly and interim financial reports, and to know
about external auditors’ statutory audit plan. The attendance
records of the audit committee meetings are set out below:

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing (Chairman)

TRE S E (FE)

Mr. Ho Yiu Ming (deceased on 9 December 2007)
AREEE (RS LF+ = AN ABH)

Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin

Ms. Hui Yat Lam (appointed on 10 March 2008)
F—REXET(R=ZZEZENF=AT+HEZT)

Auditors’ Remuneration

The audit committee of the Company is responsible for
considering the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing
any non-audit functions performed by the external auditor,
including whether such non-audit functions could lead to any
potential material adverse effect on the Company. During the
year, auditors’ remuneration for audit services (inclusive of
taxation services) is HK$751,000. Save as disclosed above, no
services such as due diligence and other advisory services were
provided during the year.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Group was established in
accordance with the Code. The main role and function included
the determination of the specific remuneration packages of all
Executive Directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, any compensation payable for loss
or termination of their office or appointment. The Remuneration
Committee should consider factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group
and desirability of performance-based remuneration.

Members of the Remuneration Committee include three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Hong Po Kui,
Martin (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Li Kuo
Hsing and Ms. Hui Yat Lam.

The Remuneration Committee has held one meeting during the
year to consider and approve (i) the remuneration of the Directors,
(i) salary adjustment of the management of the Group; and (iii)
range of salary adjustment of employees of the Group. The
attendance record of the Remuneration Committee meeting is
set out below:

Mr. Ho Yiu Ming (deceased on 9 December 2007)
AEAEE (RZZETEF+ AL BETH)

Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin (Chairman)

RE KL (FF)

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing

2[5 B 5F A

Ms. Hui Yat Lam (appointed on 10 March 2008)
HF—EREZLT(RZZENF=H+HEZEE)

Nomination of Directors

The Board is empowered under the Company’s Articles of
Association to appoint any person as a director either to fill a
casual vacancy on or, subject to authorization by the shareholders
of the Company in general meeting, as an additional member of
the Board. Qualified candidates will be proposed to the Board
for consideration and the selection criteria are mainly based on
the assessment of their professional qualifications and experience.
The Board selects and recommends candidates for directorship
having regard to the balance of skills and experience appropriate
to the Group’s business.
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Responsibility of Preparation of the Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility of preparing the
financial statements of the Company. As at 31 March 2008, the
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties or events
which may have a significant impact on the Company’s ability to
operate as an on-going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have
prepared the financial statements of the Company on an on-
going concern basis. The responsibility of the auditors with respect
to financial reporting are set out in the Report of the Auditors in
this annual report.

Internal Control Systems

The Company has conducted a review of its system of internal
control periodically to ensure an effective and adequate internal
control system exists. The Company convened meeting periodically
to discuss financial, operational and risk management control.
The Directors consider that the Company has implemented a
series of procedures for safeguarding the Company’s assets
against unauthorised use or misappropriation, maintaining
accounting records properly and ensuring the reliability of financial
information.

TR T A 2 JAE

ESHRBEESERIRRACRA M BEHREK - =
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The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2008.

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Cayman Islands on 21 May 2002 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands and
its shares have been listed on The Growth Enterprise Market (the
“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 19 November 2003.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and particulars of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 17 to the financial statements.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of beauty and
slimming services from slimming centres, distribution sales of
cosmetic and skin care products and sale of other health and
beauty products. The slimming centres, which are operated under
the “Sau San Tong” brand name, provide services such as whole
and partial body slimming, weight management, body treatment
services and facial treatment services to its customers.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2008, and
the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that
date, are set out in the financial statements on pages 35 to 110.

Transfer of Reserves

Profit attributable to shareholders of HK$1,839,000 (2007: loss
of HK$15,947,000) have been transferred to reserves. Other
movements in reserve are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements on page 92.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2008 (2007: Nil).

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 4. The summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment are
set out in note 15 to the financial statements on page 71.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 29(c) to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, share premium
and contributed surplus of the Company are distributable to the
shareholders. As at 31 March 2008, the Company has no reserves
available for distribution to shareholders.

Segment Information

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segment is set out in note 14 to the financial
statements on pages 69 to 71.

Share Option Information

A summary of the share option scheme and details of the
movements in share options of the Company during the year are
set out in note 28 to the financial statements on pages 88 to 91.

Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie
Mr. Lee Man Kwong (retired on 19 March 2008)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Ms.

Ho Yiu Ming (deceased on 9 December 2007)
Hong Po Kui, Martin

Li Kuo Hsing

Hui Yat Lam (appointed on 10 March 2008)

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Li Kuo Hsing and Ms. Hui Yat Lam will retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.
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The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin, Mr. Li Kuo Hsing and Ms. Hui Yat
Lam as at the date of this annual report and therefore still
considers them to be independent.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group as at the date of this annual report
are set out on pages 18 to 19.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley and Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie
each has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of three years commencing 4 November 2003 and will
continue thereafter for successive term of one year unless and
until terminate by not less than six months’ notice in writing
served by either party to the other provided that such notice
period shall not expire at any time during the first 12 calendar
months of the term of the appointment.

Each of these Executive Directors is entitled to a basic salary and
a discretionary bonus provided that the aggregate amount of
the bonuses payable to all the Executive Directors for any financial
year of the Company may not exceed 10% of the audited
consolidated net profit of the Group (after taxation and minority
interest but before extraordinary and exceptional items of the
Group) in respect of the financial year.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors have been appointed
for a term expiring on 31 July 2007 with the term being renewed
for a further term of one year commencing from 1 August 2007.
Save for a total fee of approximately HK$152,000 for all of them
for the year ended 31 March 2008, the Independent Non-
Executive Directors are not entitled to any other remuneration.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

None of the Directors had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance subsisting during or at
the end of the financial year to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions
in Shares

As at 31 March 2008, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company or their
respective associates in shares and underlying shares (the
“Shares”) of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO")) which are required to be notified to the Company
and the Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO, including interests and/or short positions which they
are deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO,
or which will be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant
to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company:

Number of shares

#HEZ G

EEMERARRNETAMBRBMITLMAA
MBEREARGEREDAFTEZENERANTE
EREEEAEEAER -

HHRERTHN RPN Z a5 Rk A

RZZBZENF=ZHA=+—H ARAREERE2]

BABER B 2BHBEALTRAR R HEABEE
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*B)Zﬂxfﬁ&ﬁ?ﬁﬂx@((ﬁxf’ﬁj)EP?‘?EE‘% £ 3%
MAREES RPEGRIEXVEETRFEED
*B%EE%DA$QT&Hﬁ%xﬁﬁ(@?ﬁﬁﬁm%&,ﬁﬁf
&Pl BREG BB AREEEE 2 ER/
HZAXRR)  HRIEEF M E GHIE352(F KA
2 FARBAIER EHHRAES46E567FANE
ARRRZFAEMT

RARRRMPDZHFR :

Approximate

g = percentage of
interest in the
Company'’s issued
share capital
Corporate Personal LEDiAr N
Name of Director interests interests Total B RITRA
EEgE A T R & (PN £ By EEZEYEIHL
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley 293,200,000 100,070,000 393,270,000 40.97%
ok & 8 4 (Note 1)
(Kt at1)
Note 1: Kt -

The 293,200,000 shares were held by Biochem Investments Limited
("Biochem™), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability. The entire issued share capital of Biochem is wholly owned
by Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley.

4 293,200,000/% % 15 H Biochem Investments Limited
(IBiochem]) # % ' Biochem& —M R EB R L& S
A2 BRAF] ° Biochemz &3 B 317 I8 7N /i ok £ HHE
+T2EHES -
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Long position in underlying shares of the Company:
Share Option Scheme

The interests in the underlying shares of the Company arise from
share options granted to the Directors of the Company under
the Company’s share option scheme, details of which are as
follows:

RARABBEERG 2R
BIRE S

AABEBEBD 2 KA AR RIREBERE S
BRYARARES2HBERE  EFBHET

Approximate

percentage
Aggregate interest in the
Long position in  Company’s issued
underlying Shares share capital
Subscription  of the Company NG|
Price per share iV NN BRIRA
Name of Director Date of grant Exercisable period =1 HER G H BRZBH
EEpER BT¥EH TS ARE BREZEY Bl
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, 10 September 2004 10 September 2004 — HK$0.512 5,000,000 0.52%
Shirley —TTMFENATA 3 November 2013 0.512% T
REMRE L “TTNFENATHE
“E-=f+-H=H
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, 10 September 2004 10 September 2004 — HK$0.512 5,000,000 0.52%
Frankie —TTMFENA+A 3 November 2013 0.512% 7T
REELE —ZEMFEAATRE
“E-=f+-H=H
Note 1: HtaEr -

The above interest constitutes a long position of the Director in a physically
settled equity derivative for the purpose of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2008, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates has any personal, family, corporate or other interests
or short positions in the Shares of the Company or its associated
(within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to the
minimum standard of dealings by Directors of the Company as
referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, are
required to be notified to the Company and the Exchange.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in

Shares

As at 31 March 2008, so far was known to any Directors or chief
executive of the Company, the following interests of which would
fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or who were deemed to be directly or indirectly interested
in 5% or more of the issued capital of the Company, or which
were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO or have notified to the Company
were as follows:

Long position in Shares:

3 BRI Z B 7k e KT

RZZENE=ZA=1+—08  BARFEAESH
FETHRABRA - THEERIEESFRAEGRD
EXVERE 2R FEINEATHE + IWREBEE K
MEEA AR BB EITRAS% A E - sk HE 8k
RIBEES R EEFIEIB6KEREFEZEDE
sk e R FEDT

Rp 23R -

Number of shareholding

BEREE

Number

of share

options held

Substantial shareholder Capacity Share Percentage g

FERR 5% % 12 Bot BREZE

Biochem Beneficial owner 293,200,000 30.55% —
E=mEB A

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley Beneficial owner 100,070,000 10.42% 5,000,000
ok & I+ Emi#EE A

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures O I B A 2R 2 A

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares” above, at no
time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Competing Interests

None of the Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company
or their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
has any interest in a business which compete or might compete
with the business of the Group.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities of the

Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, purchases from the Group'’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 93.37% (2007: 97.36%) of the total purchases
for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 88.52% (2007: 48.17%). Sales to the
Group's five largest customers accounted for 24.87% (2007:
21.49%) of the total sales for the year.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers.

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$164,000.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

Audit Committee

The Group has established an audit committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Details of the role and work performed by the
committee are set out in “Corporate Governance Report” in this
annual report.
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Code of Conduct Regarding Securities Transactions by

Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Director on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied
with the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Auditors

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited was first appointed as auditors of
the Company in 2008 upon the resignation of CCIF CPA Limited.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited retire and, being eligible offer
themselves for reappointment. A resolution for re-appointment
of Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as auditors of the Company is
to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2008
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BAKER TILLY

HONG KONG LIMITED

FiREG LT A R A

12th Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong

HEWTHEDI68-200i RGP OB A KE 2

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Sau San Tong Holdings Limited
BEEERBRAA

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sau
San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages
35 to 110, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 March 2008, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor's Report & i/ # Z( Al #% &

An audit includes performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of the affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 March 2008 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 30 June 2008

Lo Wing See
Practising certificate number PO4607
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Consolidated Income Statement 4 A W as %

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #Z —ZZNF=ZA=+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (b 7T 251))

2008 2007
—E2E2N\F —ETAF
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
H & FET FET
Turnover EHEE 5 446,821 443,588
Cost of sales & AR (344,809) (348,164)
Gross profit EF 102,012 95,424
Other revenue H it Yz 6 3,747 6,001
Other net income B b Yg A% 58 6 980 1,407
Selling and distribution costs SHE R KA (63,491) (65,370)
General and administrative expenses — M RITER X (39,115) (45,505)
Other operating expenses At 48 & B 2 — (7)
Profit/(loss) from operations KERAN(BR) 4,133 (8,050)
Finance costs A& AR 7(a) (941) (666)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRBAER, (FE) 7 3,192 (8,716)
Income tax expense TS i B 2 8 (1,353) (7,231)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRERN(EE) 1,839 (15,947)
Attributable to: EER
Equity shareholders of the Company RARERFEEA 11 (55) (21,457)
Minority interests DB R = 1,894 5,510
Profit/(loss) for the year ERBF,(EFE) 1,839 (15,947)
Dividend ) 12 — —
Loss per share BREE 13
Basic, HK cents IR B (0.01) (3.22)
Diluted, HK cents g - B (0.01) (3.22)

The notes on pages 42 to 110 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet %4 EE B 2%

At 31 March 2008 R=ZEZN\F=A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JA3& 7T 271))

2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Notes (restated)
ikza (E7)
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - KKK 15 22,737 19,978
Goodwill GRS 16 250 250
22,987 20,228
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 78 18 6,689 15,864
Trade receivables EUE 5 E 19 35,642 24,678
Prepayments, deposits TERNRIE - &2
and other receivables X E b & W 5K I8 19 28,472 16,863
Amounts due from related parties FEW B8 & A T 5KIA 20 23,200 10,327
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBELEED 21 50,493 20,533
144,496 88,265
Current liabilities nEBEE
Bank loans, secured RITER - B 22 22,131 10,110
Trade payables FEE 5 RIE 23 15,004 16,312
Other payables and accrued charge HEMENREREGTER 23 21,699 22,827
Loan and interest payable to a director BN —ZEZEEZEZ LT B 24 — 5,585
Deferred income i E A 18,110 23,415
Obligation under finance leases & TH B A E 25 302 834
Current taxation = BRI 18 26(a) 197 3,470
77,443 82,553
Net current assets REBEERE 67,053 5,712
Total assets less current liabilities EERABERADAEE 90,040 25,940
Non-current liabilities kRBEME
Obligation under finance leases & fH B A E 25 — 232
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBE A& E 26(b) 3,041 —
3,041 232
NET ASSETS EETHE 86,999 25,708
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 44 &E B &%

At 31 March 2008 R=ZEZN\F=A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JA3& 7T 271))

2008 2007
—EENE —EEEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Notes (restated)
B &% (E7)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR G 29
Share capital g A 9,599 6,669
Reserves 1 48,542 2,403
Total equity attributable to equity AABE=FEE A
shareholders of the Company JE(E = 45 58,141 9,072
Minority interests B R 28,858 16,636
TOTAL EQUITY R 86,999 25,708
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on ~EFER _FTTN\FRNA =+ BHERK
30 June 2008. T3 o
Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie
K E it REE
Director Director
o o

The notes on pages 42 to 110 form part of these financial H$42ZF 1108 2K EFBEHE 2 —2pMH °
statements.
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Balance Sheet &E & &%

At 31 March 2008 R=ZEZN\F=A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JA3& 7T 271))

2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Notes (restated)
ikza (E7)
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR Z&RE 17 4 4
4 4
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE W B /B A B 3R I8 17 57,147 18,104
Prepayments, deposits BRRIE - ES
and other receivables N E A e 5K IE 19 2,906 114
Cash and cash equivalents ReEkBEEED 21 51 314
60,104 18,532
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries RN 17 4,164 4,903
Loan and interest payable to a director B —ZEZEHX LI E 24 — 5,585
Other payables and accrued charges & ERIE R BT B A 23 810 939
4,974 11,427
Net current assets RBEERE 55,130 7,105
NET ASSETS EETHE 55,134 7,109
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ERXR#E 29
Share capital [N 9,599 6,669
Reserves G 45,535 440
TOTAL EQUITY ERAE 55,134 7,109

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

30 June 2008.

Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
ik & it
Director

EE

The notes on pages 42 to 110 form part of these financial

statements.

Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie

REE
Director

EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #z

=1

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #Z —ZZNF=ZA=+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (b 7T 251))

2008 2007
—EENE —EELEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Notes (restated)
i F (&)
Total equity at 1 April (restated) ROA—HzE=#A%E (F5) 3 25,708 35,687
Net income recognised BEEREEERZ
directly in equity: WA FE
Exchange differences on translation BME NGB QA2
of the financial statements WMBHREMEELEZ
of overseas subsidiaries P& & = & 3,777 309
Net profit/(loss) for the year EREFN(BE) FHE 1,839 (15,947)
Total recognised income and FREBRIVWAR
expense for the year B 5,616 (15,638)
Attributable to: HER
Equity shareholders of the Company ARARERFEA 640 (21,384)
Minority interests DB R = 4,976 5,746
5,616 (15,638)
Movements in equity arising BREAZGREEZ
from capital transactions: EREE :
Capital reserve arising from acquisition — Ug BE P} /B A ) 5B HME 25
of additional interest in subsidiaries FrEE 2 BARfHE — 195
Issue of shares, net of expenses BTG MBRHAZ 48,514 —
Capital injection from DB R
minority shareholders EAER 7,246 5,391
Realisation of capital reserve BARFEEER (100) =
Realisation of merger reserve upon R EFEEHE — BB QAR
disposal of a subsidiary in prior year GO REBER 15 —
Minority interest arising from XBEHEELEZ
business combination DEIR R E = — 73
55,675 5,659
Total equity at 31 March R=R=+—BzEZHE
(2007: restated) (Z2BZ2tF: E5) 29(a) 86,999 25,708

The notes on pages 42 to 110 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement #

For the year ended 31 March 2008 B#Z —ZZNF=ZA=+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JA3& 7T 271))

I

2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B & FET F&T
Operating activities REEH
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRI ATEF (EE) 3,192 (8,716)
Adjustments for: AT 2 -
— Interest income — F B A 6 (276) (125)
— Depreciation — e 7(c) 7,801 9,084
— Net loss/(gain) on disposal of — HEWE  HER
property, plant and equipment BB BB (W) FE 6 181 (427)
— Interest expenses — MBERX 7(a) 941 666
— Foreign exchange loss — [E N EE 1,484 267
Operating profit before changes EEESEBAIZ
in working capital KEBA 13,323 749
Decrease /(increase) in inventories FERLD () 9,175 (5,706)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables  fEUE 5718 (3 1) 5 4 (10,964) 580
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, TBRRIE - ReRkEM
deposits and other receivables W SR IE (3 0) R (11,609) 141
Increase in amounts due JFE Lt /A 25 A = SRIE I 0
from related parties (12,873) (26,712)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables FENE B E R ) 18 (1,308) 778
(Decrease)/increase in other H b FES RIB R ERTE A
payables and accrued charges CRL) /& (1,128) 19,207
(Decrease)/increase in deferred income  IEIEUW A GEi ) /4 0 (5,305) 1,249
Cash used in operations ARREER2BE (20,689) (9,714)
Tax paid [RENERE
PRC income tax paid B BAEH (1,949) (4,036)
Interest received B UHF S 276 125
Interest paid B F S (1,160) (666)
Net cash used in operating activities ARKEZTBH2HLFHE (23,522) (14,291)
Investing activities REZD
Payment for the property, Y% MBERBE MR
plant and equipment (10,790) (7,868)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE -  MBERELE
plant and equipment Z P15 318 762 2,540
Net cash used in investing activities FARBREZTBH2HLFEHE (10,028) (5,328)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 4248382 &%

For the year ended 31 March 2008 HHZ T T \F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JA3& 7T 271))

2008 2007
—EENE —EELEF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
i F FET FHET
Financing activities R EEE
Issue of shares, net of expenses BTG MBRHAZ 48,514 —
Repayment of bank loans BEBRITER (75,970) —
Proceeds from new bank loans FILIRITE R Z B RIE 87,991 10,110
Repayment of loan from a director BE—REFER (5,366) —
Proceeds from new loan from a director ¥ —ZLEEER 2B NA — 2,632
Capital element of finance EN@EHEEES 2
lease rentals paid B AR — 1,645
Repayment of finance leases BEERENRE (764) (579)
Capital injection from DER R
minority shareholders EAE AR 7,246 5,391
Net cash generated from REMEZTHZ
financing activities ReFE 61,651 19,199
Increase/(decrease) in cash and RERBREEEY
cash equivalents #in, ORd) 28,101 (420)
Cash and cash equivalents ROUA—BZHERES
at 1 April ZEY 20,533 21,005
Effect of foreign exchange ERSE 2%
rate changes 1,859 (52)
Cash and cash equivalents R=ZA=+—HZEEK
at 31 March REEEY 21 50,493 20,533

The notes on pages 42 to 110 form an integral part of these $42EFH 1108 2 Wik S EHRER 2 — 315 °
financial statements.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Company Information

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21 May
2002 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law Cap. 22, (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands and its
shares have been listed on The Growth Enterprise Market
(the "GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "“Stock Exchange”) since 19 November 2003.

The Company is domiciled in the Cayman Islands and has
its registered office and principal place of business at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681GT, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and 12th Floor, Prestige Tower,
Nos. 23-25 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong
Kong respectively.

Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange “GEM Listing Rules”. A summary
of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note 4 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008
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Notes to the Financial Statements 871 7% # & i it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for year ended
31 March 2008 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of
material adjustment in the next year are discussed in
note 35.

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently are
exercisable are taken into account.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 871 7% # & i it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(c) Subsidiaries and minority interests (Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net
assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are
not owned by the Company, whether directly or
indirectly through subsidiaries, and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result in
the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition
of a financial liability. Minority interests are presented
in the consolidated balance sheet within equity,
separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Minority interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated income statement as an allocation
of the total profit or loss for the year between minority
interests and the equity shareholders of the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the
minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the
excess, and any further losses applicable to the
minority, are charged against the Group’s interest
except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation to, and is able to, make additional
investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary
subsequently reports profits, the Group’s interest is
allocated all such profits until the minority’s share of
losses previously absorbed by the group has been
recovered.

In the company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(g)(ii)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements 871 7% # & i it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a
business combination over the Group'’s interest in the
net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
and is tested annually for impairment (see note

2(g)(ii)).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business
combination is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year,
any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

(i)  Items of property, plant and equipment are
stated in the balance sheet at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 2(g)(ii)).

(ii)  Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of property, plant and equipment, less their
residual value, if any, using the straight line
method, over their estimated useful lives at the
following annual rates:

10% — 20%

20%

20%

Over the lease terms
10% — 30%

Office equipment
Machinery

Furniture and fixtures
Leasehold improvements
Motor vehicles

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.

(iii)  Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item or property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the estimated net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 871 7% # & i it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ([ 2 & 85N - 5B TTFIR)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(f) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of
a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which
do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases.

(i) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets
under finance leases, the amounts representing
the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower,
the present value of the minimum lease
payments, of such assets are included in fixed
assets and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations
under finance leases. Depreciation is provided
at rates which write off the cost or valuation of
the assets over the term of the relevant lease
or, where it is likely the Group will obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as
set out in note 2(e). Impairment losses are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in note 2(g)(ii). Finance charges
implicit in the lease payments are charged to
profit or loss over the period of the leases so as
to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 871 7% # & i it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(f) Leased assets (Continued)

(iii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

(g) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of receivables

Receivables that are stated at cost are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of
the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

—  a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 871 7% # & i it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(9)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of receivables (Continued)

For trade and other receivables, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets), where the
effect of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where financial assets carried
at amortised cost share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case,
the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade and other receivable directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 871 7% # & i it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(g) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;
— investments in subsidiaries; and
—  goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements 871 7% # & i it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(9)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)
—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash generating unit (or group of units)
and the, to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less
costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.

—  Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of
goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the GEM Listing Rules, the Group is
required to prepare interim financial reports in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first three, six and
nine months of the financial year. At the end
of each of such interim periods, the Group
applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (see notes 2(g)(i)
and (ii)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements 871 7% # & i it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(h)

()

()

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method
and comprises all cost of purchases cost of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (see
note 2(g)(i)), except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would
be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 871 7% # & i it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(k)

0

(m)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with note 2(o)(i), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme in Hong Kong and defined contribution
government pension schemes in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC").

Contributions to mandatory provident fund as
required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 871 7% # & i it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(m) Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans (Continued)

The employees in the PRC are members of the
retirement benefit scheme organised by the
government in the PRC. The Group is required
to contribute, based on a certain percentage of
payrolls, to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme. Contributions to this
retirement benefit scheme are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred except to
the extent that they are included in the cost of
inventories at the balance sheet date.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in share-based
payment reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the Black Scholes
model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 871 7% # & i it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(m) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed.
Any adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to
the profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based payment reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number
of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based payment reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares. The
equity amount is recognised in the share-based
payment reserve until either the options is
exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when
it is released directly to retained profits).

(n) Income tax

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised directly in equity, in
which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary difference
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 871 7% # & i it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(n)

Income tax (Continued)

(iii)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which
the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will
arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are
taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments
in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of
taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not discounted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 871 7% # & i it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(n)
(iii)

(iv)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented
separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current tax
liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financia

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ([ % #& 8345

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(o) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

(i)

(ii)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee (being the
transaction price, unless the fair value can
otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payables. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 2(o)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Company under the guarantee, and (ii) the
amount of that claim on the Company is
expected to exceed the amount currently carried
in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

| Statements B1 7% R & B &+
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Notes to the Financia

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B = BEHN -

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(o)

(p)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(ii)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the distribution sale of cosmetic
and skin care products and the sale of other
health and beauty products is recognised when
goods are delivered at the customers’ premises
which is taken to be the point in time when
the customer has accepted the goods and the
related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value-added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from the provision of beauty and
slimming services

Revenue from the provision of beauty and
slimming services is recognised in profit or loss
in proportion to the stage of completion of the
service contract. Revenue is also recognised in
profit or loss in respect of the deferred income
upon the expiry of the service contract.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

Management and consultancy fee income

Management and consultancy fee income is
recognised when services are rendered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 871 7% # & i it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ([ 2 & 85N - B TTFIR)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. FEEIHBE (&)
(q) Translation of foreign currencies (q) I®@rE
Foreign currency transactions during the year are EWZ?\\%X%&X%EZETW‘E ®
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the DN HE BB EERBRIREER
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities ZERBE  EHREBENBEEER

denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured ?ﬁfiﬁiKﬁA?\\ﬁﬁ‘ﬁEZ#m?ﬁgﬁﬁﬁ
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are BEFARSBZEXRKE

translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at

the transactions dates.

The results of foreign currencies are translated into INEEBTHIRER S A 2 EXRE 2 E
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates EMmERET BEABREAB (B
approximately the foreign exchange rates ruling at %&é@b%%ﬂ%a MELZEE)
the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items, REEHZEERERBT - TEEZ
including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign [R%%ﬁiﬂ%ifl%”ﬁm NIER °

operations, are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised directly in a separate component of equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative REEBINEBRE - EERNERE @

amount of the exchange differences recognised in ZBINEB RAtER EZRAEAEHEE

equity which relate to that foreign operation is BEaBEesiEER -

included in the calculation of the profit or loss on

disposal.

(r) Borrowing costs (r) EERX
Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the BEXNARELBHRARERYZ -
period in which they are incurred.
(s) Related parties (s) BEAL

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party HUETHBHREMES - TIHATHERR

is considered to be related to the Group if: HEZK£E [E A fH i

(i)  the party has the ability, directly or indirectly () ZABHENEESNHESZR —HE
through one or more intermediaries, to control HEBANRAEIEGIARNEE - 5%
the Group or exercise significant influence over ﬁzﬁﬁ lzﬁﬁ%’{&i‘“%ﬂ( R 2R
the Group in making financial and operating FipMERNTE  HHERZESA
policy decisions, or has joint control over the &8
Group;

(i)  the Group and the party are subject to common (i ANEERZAZHLREZES
control;

(iii)  the party is an associate of the Group in which (i) ZABRAEEZBEALT H MA
the Group is a venturer; EEAESEEH,
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Notes to the Financia

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ([ % #& 8345

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(s) Related parties (Continued)

(t)

(iv) the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent,
or a close family member of such an individual,
or is an entity under the control, joint control
or significant influence of such |nd|V|duaIs,

(v)  the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control
or significant influence of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or of any entity that is a related party of
the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with
the entity.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the
Group that is engaged either in providing products
or services (business segment), or in providing
products or services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment), which is subject
to risks and rewards that are different from those of
other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting system, the Group has chosen business
segment information as the primary reporting format
and geographical segment as the secondary reporting
format for the purposes of these financial statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis to that segment. For example,
segment assets may include inventories, trade
receivables and property, plant and equipment. For
example, segment revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities are determined before intra-group balances
and intra-group transactions are eliminated as part
of the consolidation process, except to the extent
that such intra-group balances and transactions are
between Group entities within a single segment. Inter-
segment pricing is based on similar terms as those
available to other external parties.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 871 7% # & i it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

o

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(t) Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets (both
tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used
for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings,
tax balances, corporate and financing expenses.

Correction of Prior Period Error

During the year ended 31 March 2005, the Company
granted certain share options to the eligible participants,
including directors, employees and advisors, under the
Company’s Share Option Scheme (see note 28). However,
the fair value of these share options was not recognised
and included in the financial statements of prior years. As
at 31 March 2008, the number of these outstanding share
options, which are fully vested in 2005, is 11,000,000
(2007: 11,000,000). In the opinion of the directors, based
on their best estimates, the fair value of these outstanding
options as at 31 March 2008 is HK$1,558,000 which should
be accounted for in the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2005 under the requirement of HKFRS 2
Share-based payment. Accordingly, the prior period error
has been corrected retrospectively by decreasing the
opening balance of the Group’s and the Company’s
accumulated losses as of 1 March 2006 and 2007 by
HK$1,558,000 and with the corresponding increase in share-
based payment reserve (see note 29).

Changes in Accounting Policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs
and Interpretations that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company.

There have been no significant changes to the accounting
policies applied in these financial statements for the years
presented as a result of these developments. However, as
a result of the adoption of HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures and the amendment to HKAS 1, Presentation
of financial statements: Capital disclosures, there have been
certain additional disclosures provided.

(B = BEHRN - BUBTIIR)
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Notes to the Financial Statements 871 7% # & i it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ([ 2 & 85N - 5B TTFIR)

O

Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 7, the financial
statements included expanded disclosures about the
significance of the Group’s financial instruments and the
nature and extent of risks arising from those instruments,
compared with the information previously required to be
disclosed by HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Disclosure and
presentation. These disclosures are provided throughout
these financial statements, in particular in note 30.

The amendment to HKAS 1 introduces additional disclosures
requirements to provide information about the level of
capital and the Group’s and the Company’s objectives,
policies and processes for managing capital. These new
disclosures are set out in note 29(f).

Both HKFRS 7 and the amendment to HKAS 1 do not have
any material impact on the classification, recognition and
measurements of the amounts recognised in the financial
instruments.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 36).

Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are the distribution
sale of cosmetic and skin care products, provision of beauty
and slimming services and sale of other health and beauty
products.

Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods sold, net
of discounts, returns, value-added tax and sales tax; and
service income from provision of beauty and slimming
services, net of discounts. The amount of each significant
category of revenue recognised in turnover during the year
is as follows:

O

Bt BgZ E 8 ()

HAERBEEE ST EREI2R [T A
BELR2IIATHREZERBAL - RAEE
MBREERNETREBW B ERRBEAAE
SECZEMITAZEEURZETAZEER
RELEZRBEE ZHIERE - ZSREH
RZEVBREATRAD » LEZWE
30 °

ARG ERE 1R (BATA) 5| NBINEER
- RRERHBEBENKFERAKERARQA
BEREAZBER BREREFZEHR - &F
4% B8 A M EE29()

ERMBRELERETREBE ST EAE
TR HEReRMIERRZEBZD
B BANELEENEATE -

7N 52 B 30 4 e PR AE AR 0 AN & T HA R 1) R AR
ZHFER g2 E (RME3e) -

BEM

AEE 2 EREB R HIHEM N &S E
o REXERERREREEEMFRER

XREM o

EXBEELEM ERERETN R
5 OREBRRFEER  ARKREBREXER
AR RBBWARETH - FA - RE
XRERZBZETZRFIRESBOT

2008 2007
—EENE —EELEF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET F#ET
Distribution sale of cosmetic and 2 34 88 E b Ar R & B E

skin care products 344,563 348,249

Provision of beauty and REZAREBRE (W E)
slimming services (note) 99,935 91,090
Sale of other health and beauty products  $5%& E (R & =B E @ 2,323 4,249
446,821 443,588

Note: Included in the revenue from provision of beauty and
slimming services was HK$39,626,000 (2007:
HK$13,357,000) arising from the realisation of in respect of
the deferred income upon the expiry of the service contracts.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

0. Other Revenue and Net Income

(B = BEHRN - BUBTIIR)

6.  H AW as RIRAF#H

2008 2007
—ZEEN\F —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET F&T
Other revenue H fth g 23
Interest income FLEM A 276 125
Management and consultancy fee income EIE MAAE WA 3,383 4,017
Others H fth 88 1,859
3,747 6,001
Other net income Hi g A F 5
Subsidiary income from P KA 4 B A
the PRC government 1,113 292
Reversal of impairment loss B E SRIEZ
on trade receivables R BB 172 —
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEMZE - HBEREZHEZ
plant and equipment (B1R) W= F5E (181) 427
Other (loss)/income H (E58) WA (124) 688
980 1,407
7. Profit/(loss) before Taxation 7. BEEAF(EHE)

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived after charging:

BRI BA, S (B18) EMER T3 &SHE

2008 2007
—ZEEN\F ZETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET F&T
(a) Finance costs (a) ®ERAK
Interest on bank loans RITEFF 2 861 314
Interest on other loans wholly BARAFRNEHEEZ
repayable within five years HiERZHE — 72
Interest on loan payable to a director B —RBEFERZFHE 32 220
Finance charges on obligations MEHEREZHITER
under finance leases 48 60
941 666
(b) Staff costs (b) BIAK
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e o R RHEMEF 40,763 39,247
Contributions to defined FE TR ARG E 2 R
contribution retirement plans 4,286 2,926
45,049 42,173
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81 7% # % it i

(B = BEHAN - BHUBTIIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Profit/(loss) before Taxation (Continued) . BREBLETAF(EHE) (E)

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived after charging: BRBAAF (BB EMBRTASE

2008 2007
—EENE —EEEF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAET
(c) Other items: (c) HfhEA :
Cost of inventories sold (note (i) BEFEKAN (A7E3) 344,809 348,164
Auditors’ remuneration = E DB & 751 842
Depreciation on property, M - SR
plant and equipment HEIE
— Leased assets — BEHESE 329 189
— Owned assets — BEMEEE 7,472 8,895
Reinstatement cost of lease HEMHEEERAR
premises (note (ii) (B £ (i) 630 —
Impairment loss on U E SRIE 2
trade receivables VRN ! 362 7
Net foreign exchange loss P& 5 5 18 % &8 9 72
Donation B R 164 220
Operating lease rentals: minimum CEHERS ¢
lease payments =EESES
— property rentals — MEMEE 16,708 15,751
— other equipment — HMRE 424 309
Note: HfaE -
0) Cost of inventories includes HK$1,974,000 (2007: (i) GERABREEMEINARINE Z

1,974,000 7T (Z FZ L4 : 1,993,000
70) c % &R IS KR S 2 BlET A £ XX
HIFE7(b) N 1% 58 2 HE R AR RE o

HK$1,993,000) relating to staff cost and depreciation, which
amount is also includes in the respective total amounts
disclosed separately above or note 7(b) for each type of
expense.

BRE—REERS  —HNBAREEEE

(ii) Under a tenancy agreement, a subsidiary is obligated to (ii)

reinstate the leased office premises to a condition in
accordance with the landlord’s standard specifications.
Accordingly, HK$630,000 was paid by the subsidiary during
the year ended 31 March 2008 in connection with the
reinstatement of leased premised based on a surrender
agreement entered into with the landlord.

Apart from the above, during the years ended 31 March
2007 and 2008, the Group had also entered into certain
tenancy agreements whereas the Group is obligated to
reinstate the leased office premises. However, no provision
for reinstatement of leased premises is made by the Group
in this regard since the magnitude of the possible
reinstatement is unknown and therefore such future cost
cannot be reasonably estimated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 871 7% # & i it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ([ 2 & 85N - B TTFIR)

§.

Income Tax in the Consolidated Income Statement

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated income statement

1 W i 7 A Z T A3 B
(a) #eEWEmFTANZBIAR !

represents:
2008 2007
—EEN\F ZTTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Current tax — PRC Income Tax EHBE — PELCEMRSH
Provision for the year (note 26(a)) FREAE (f7226(a) 1,684 6,865
Over-provision in respect BEFEBRERE
of prior years (3,197) —
(1,513) 6,865
Deferred tax I E B 18
Origination and reversal of EERBEOEREZE
temporary differences 2,866 366
Income tax expenses TS f 1,353 7,231
(i)  No provision for taxation is made for the (i) HREARARERCEBMHESHE
Company as it is exempted from taxation in the FRIE - U A A I & VE A IR
Cayman Islands. o
(i) No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made () MBEBFNESHmMS  BERAKNED

(iii)

(iv)

for 2008 (2007: HK$Nil) as the subsidiaries
sustained tax losses or have no assessable profit
for Hong Kong Profits Tax purposes.

Individual subsidiaries within the Group are
generally subject to the appropriate current rates
of taxation ruling in the relevant countries.

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of
the Tenth National People’s Congress passed
the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China (the “New Tax Law"”) which
has become effective on 1 January 2008. As a
result of the New Tax Law, the statutory income
tax rate adopted by the PRC entities change to
25% with effective from 1 January 2008.
Accordingly, the income tax rate for the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group is changed to the
standard rate of 25% and the enactment of
the New Tax Law has no significant financial
impact on the amounts accrued in the balance
sheet in respect of current tax payable.

The change in the carrying amount of the
deferred tax assets and liabilities, as a result of
the change in tax rate, is recognised in the
consolidated income statement of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2008.

A B 15 %RIEEE?EXIMH%REJ
Ao BMTEHR =T 7)\¢{¢ﬁ§
BHSREE (CEZLF

7T) °
(i) AEEAERMBAR - REAR
HEBERZEEE AR

RZZEZLF=F+H £+
EEEARKRASFLAZE
SEBBTEARKMBECERM
BEOE ([FBAE]) - HBEER
—TTENF-A—BAEX - RIE
ML PREIBBMRMAZETE
W ENR25%  A-TTN

F-—A—BEER - AUt $¢
BohBEHBRARZABRED

M BIEER R25% M B HEHH
&gééaﬁﬁmﬁ%*%ﬁﬁ
B2 BT RELEE X BE

2

(iv) HRBEERNEMSI B ZELERIE
EERBBZEEEZSHENA
%.%@i_??)\i A=+—
EHJZEFJ_LZNT\ J‘BZ %Wﬁ@um\O
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ([ 2 & 85N - 5B TTFIR)

S. Income Tax in the Consolidated Income Statement 8. AW a2 BB (&
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense and (b) FIEHAXEEEAREFTEZEHTR
accounting profit/(loss) at the applicable tax rates: M, (E1R) 2 $EE
2008 2007
—EENFE —EETLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET F&T
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRERIAEF (EE) 3,192 (8,716)
Notional tax on profit/(loss) BREAATR, (E8) 2
before taxation, calculated at BEBIE - RERR
the rates applicable to profits FRBER &2
in the countries concerned MEH 285 1,612
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses T—HDH R zBiBee 1,786 387
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARBA 2 TS5 2 (2,308) (1,420)
Tax effect of unused tax losses KRR A AT IBE
not recognised 22 1,511 6,642
Tax effect of previous years’ tax RAFERRBEFE
losses recognised in current year MBBBIHBRE — (581)
Tax effect on unrecognised AERYRHEF 2B E
temporary differences 45 591
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBERE (272) =
Effect of change in tax rates MEEFH T E 818 —
Others Hh (512) —
Actual tax expenses ERBIERMX 1,353 7,231
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

9.

(B = BEHRN - BUBTIIR)

Directors’ Remuneration 9. HH 5
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the disclosure BREBEBDFEFFE161E 2 HEHEmIE
requirement of section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies HRBEC2ESH2OT ¢
Ordinance is as follows:
Salaries, allowances Retirement scheme
Directors' fees and benefits in kind contributions Total
EEHe ¢ BERENANZ BARGTEMR At
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
ZEENE -TTHF ZZENE -TTtf ZEBEENF C-TTtF CZFENE —TTtF
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FATL FEx FET FEn FEL FEx FAETL
Executive directors #HTEE
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, REMEL
Shirley — — 2,713 3,309 12 12 2,725 3,321
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, ®EEE4E
Frankie — — 600 600 12 12 612 612
Mr. Lee Man Kwong  ZXt&4
(retired on 19 (B
March 2008) “EENE
=AthH
B1E) — — 600 600 12 13 612 613
Independent Bukufm
non-executive BEE
directors
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing ZEBEE 77 3 - - - — 77 3
Mr. Hong Po Kui, RENLE
Martin 30 33 — — — — 30 33
Ms. Hui Yat Lam F-ERE
(appointed on (R
10 March 2008) “EENE
ZATRE
Zff) 4 = — — — — 4 —
Mr. Ho Yiu Ming {AVRE S &
(deceased on (B
9 December 2007) —ET+4F
+=ANE
Bt) 41 85 — = — = 41 85
152 121 3,913 4,509 36 37 4,101 4,667
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B = BEHAN - BHUBTIIR)

10. Individuals with Highest Emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two
(2007: two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 9. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of

B2 E AL

hEERFALY MBE(CEZLFE W
2)REE HMEFRBEERMEI - B
ZER(CEELF  ZR) AL Mo REnm

the other three (2007: three) individuals are as follows: T
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FE T
Salaries and other emoluments FZeREMME 2,621 2,096
Retirement scheme contributions RRET & 5K 36 32
2,657 2,128

The emoluments of the three (2007: three) individuals with
the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

=H(CEELF  ZR)BReHFALTZHE

B T 5 g E

2008 2007

—EEN\F —EEEF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A" AE

HK$ Nil — HK$1,000,000 T & T2 1,000,000/ 7T 3 3

11. Loss Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the Company

The consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company includes a loss of HK$490,000 (2007:
HK$22,939,000) which has been dealt with in the financial

statements of the Company.

12. Dividend

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2008 (2007: HK$Nil).

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008
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Notes to the Financia

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B % B &AM » ¥ A T FIR)

13.

14.

| Statements B1 7% R & B &+

Loss per Share 13. H#HJREHE
(a) Basic loss per share (a) EREXREE
The calculation of basic loss per share is on the loss BRENEETIRAR AL BRERS
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the BAEMGEE 55,0005%7E (ZZEZ2+
Company of HK$55,000 (2007: HK$21,457,000) and & : 21,457,000 L) RFEANBETZ
the weighted average of 906,421,475 ordinary shares T3 AR N HE £ 15 $0906,421,4758% (= F
(2007: 666,900,000) in issue during the year, T+ 4F 1 666,900,0000%) 5FE T ¢
calculated as follows:.
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ZERMEFIGE
2008 2007
—EENEFE —EELEF
Issued ordinary share at 1 April RO A—B2zZBE&ETEERK 666,900,000 666,900,000
Effect of shares issued BIIROD 22
(note 29(c)(ii)) (Bt &E29(c)(ii) 239,521,475 —
Weighted average number of R=A=+—HB2
ordinary share at 31 March 38 AR A0 ST 15 B 906,421,475 666,900,000
(b) Diluted loss per share (b) EREBEES
The calculation of diluted loss per share is EREEEBRDERARAAEBRERE
based on the loss attributable to ordinary equity B AE(LE51B55,0008 L (Z 2T £
shareholders of the Company of HK$55,000 (2007: F : F1E21,457 OOO,% ) B 5@ A% AN
HK$21,457,000) and the weighted average number e 15920906,421 475Hx(:ggt¢ :
of ordinary shares of 906,421,475 shares (2007: 666,900,0000%) 5t &
666,900,000 shares).
No diluted loss per share has been presented for the HREZZEZENFR=ZZEZTLF=A=
year ended 31 March 2008 and 2007 since the effect T—BERTEZEREAEREEY
of the outstanding share options as at 31 March 2008 Z HRIEZINBE_ZTN\FR-ZF
and 2007 is anti-dilutive. StF=A=t—HLFEZ2SKES
B -
Segment Reporting 14. HHWE

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s
business and geographical segments. Business segment
information is chosen as the primary reporting format
because this is more relevant to the Group’s internal
financial reporting.

Business segments

The Group’s principal activities comprise the following main
business segments:

(i) Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care products
(i) Provision of beauty and slimming services

(iii)  Sale of other health and beauty products

DRER T AR E 2 E 5 R o i 2
5 XA MEMBAEE 2 AT B RS
BERKN  EhZBEAXE O EERMERE
BEHEFN -

EX S

AREEBZIZEBANTEI2XHHHAE
X

() A HEECANEEE®R
(i REEXBTRERRG
(i) HEHMRBEEXDTEM
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ([ 2 & 85N - 5B TTFIR)
Segment Reporting (Continued) 14. HE#MAE (E)
Business segments () %X%BoE
Provision of beauty  Sale of other health and Inter-segment
Distribution sale  and slimming services beauty products elimination Total
PEHE RUXARARKRE HEELRERERER AEBEH Ai
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
ZEENE CTTEE CZEENE TRt ZBENE -TTtE ZBENE -TTHE CBEINE CEEtE
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TEr T T T Tix Thr FiEn AT FEr T
Revenue hen
External sales SHEE 344,563 348,249 99,935 91,090 2313 4,249 - — 446821 443,588
Inter-segment sales PEBHE - - - - 693 1,490 (693) (1,490) - -
Total revenue gt 344,563 348,249 99,935 91,090 3,016 5739 (693) (1.490) 446,821 443,588
Segment result EES 3,142 331 17,494 11,973 (2,280) (570) 18,356 11,734
Unallocated corporate expenses A AR A AR (19,063)  (27,192)
Unallocated corporate AAEATF
other revenue Efb iz 4,840 7,408
Profit/(loss) from operations ~ B&BH / (§#) 4133 (8,050)
Finance costs HERA (941) (666)
Profit/(loss) before taxation R EAIRH/ (BE) 3,192 (8,716)
Taxation fE (1,353) (7,231)
Profit/(loss) after taxation BHERF/ (BE) 1839 (15,947)
Minority interests DERFER (1,894) (5,510)
Loss attributable to equity ~ KAREZEAA
shareholders of the Company {51 (55 (21457)
Seqment assets AREE
— Property, plant and — 0% K&
equipment Rt 3,300 3,889 11,881 14,700 27 73 15,208 18,662
— Other assets —HipEE 90,551 63567 25551 14,226 4,39 4372 120498 82,165
Unallocated corporate assets kAR AREE 31,7717 7,666
Total assets BE4E 167,483 108,493
Segment liabilities 2EEE (51,461) (41,737) (23,511) (32,958) (15) (779) (74,987) (75,474)
Unallocated corporate liabilities %2 & AR AE (2,456) (71311)
Total liabilties BE4E (17,483)  (82,785)
Capital expenditure BARY
— Segment capital expenditure  — HBEAHR 1,235 1,940 8,995 5,856 - 55 10,230 7,851
— Unallocated corporate — RHEAT
capital expenditure BARX 560 17
10,790 7,868
Depreciation il
— Segment depreciation —PEHE 814 934 6,710 7,553 39 144 1,563 8,631
— Unallocated corporate — RHRAT
depreciation e 238 453
7,801 9,084
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ([ 2 & 85N - B TTFIR)

14.  Segment Reporting (Continued) 14. HE#MAE (E)
(b) Geographical segments (b) o
In presenting information on the basis of geographical RN S 25| BRI - DHRWNER
segments, segment revenue is based on the BEPMEME S - DREERERMX
geographical locations of customers. Segment assets BEEFMEMED - TREJNASEH
and capital expenditure are based on the geographical oo W ¥ERETEE - AfF
locations of assets. The following tables present EHAZER -

revenue, results and certain assets, liabilities and
expenditure information for the Group’s geographical

segments.
The PRC Hong Kong Total
H X a4
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“BENE ZCZTTtE CZEENE ZZTHF ZBENE CZTTtE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr T# Thr TAL ThEx TAL
Revenue from external MEP 2z
customers 383,167 393,839 63,654 49,749 446,821 443,588
Segment profit/(loss) PERH/ (BR) 10,487 17,244 7,869 (5,510) 18,356 11,734
Segment assets PEREE 103,760 78,004 63,723 30,489 167,483 108,493
Capital expenditure BERRY 1,908 4,120 8,882 3,748 10,790 7,868
15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15 . W3~ B R XMl
(a) The Group (a) &=5H
Furniture
and Office Leasehold Motor
fixtures  equipment  Machinery improvements vehicles Total
GRRETEE BAZRE HE HENREHL RE R
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T FET
Cost: AR
At 1 April 2006 RZZEEX EMA-A 2,127 4,145 10,985 24,292 5,840 47,389
Exchange adjustments EHAR — 39 88 184 308 619
Additions NE 883 1,774 2,163 2,876 172 7,868
Disposals HE — (19) (120) (4,113) (1,795) (6,047)
At 31 March 2007 RIZTLE
=ZA=t+-H 3,010 5,939 13,116 23,239 4,525 49,829
At 1 April 2007 —ZEN\§EA-H 3,010 5,939 13,116 23,239 4,525 49,829
Exchange adjustments [FWFI% 84 252 216 557 301 1,410
Additions NE 195 993 193 7,597 1,812 10,790
Disposals ik — (86) — (8,839) (1,703) (10,628)
At 31 March 2008 RIZZNE
=ZA=t+-H 3,289 7,098 13,525 22,554 4,935 51,401
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ([ 2 & 85N - 5B TTFIR)

15. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 15. W~ BB & (E)
(a) The Group (Continued) (a) A~%8 (&)
Furniture
and Office Leasehold Motor
fixtures  equipment  Machinery improvements vehicles Total
GHRETEE WAZERE HE HENREE "E R

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TAL TAL TAT TAT TAT TAT

Accumulated depreciation: i HE :

At 1 April 2006 RZZZ FMA-A 1,163 1,848 4,041 14,751 2,567 24,370
Exchange adjustments R 3 19 15 77 217 331
Charge for the year EREE 473 952 1,889 471 1,059 9,084
Written back on disposals i ERAE — (19) (63) (2,337) (1,515) (3,934)
At 31 March 2007 RZZZLE

=ZA=t-8 1,639 2,800 5,882 17,202 2,328 29,851
At 1 April 2007 RZEZLEMA—H 1,639 2,800 5,882 17,202 2,328 29,851
Exchange adjustments R 19 87 80 348 163 697
Charge for the year ERAE 415 974 1,860 3,812 740 7,801
Written back on disposals HE AR — (77) — (8,421) (1,187) (9,685)
At 31 March 2008 RZZENE

=A=t+-8 2,073 3,784 7,822 12,941 2,044 28,664
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 March 2008 (note) RZZEENE

ZAZ+-B (K3 1,216 3,314 5,703 9,613 2,891 22,737
At 31 March 2007 RZEELE

=A=t+-8 1,371 3,139 7,234 6,037 2,197 19,978
Note: As at 31 March 2008, the net book value of machinery Kzt - RZZEZENF=R=+—H &%

held under finance leases of the Group was EREMEHEREIRSEZZHRE
HK$1,126,000 (2007: HK$1,455,000). FME /1,126,000 T (Z T £

£ : 1,455,000/ 7T) °©
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Goodwill 16. P
The Group
REE
2008 2007
—ZEEN\F —EEEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Cost: B
At 1 April KA —H 983 910
Additions (note (i) NE (BaE30) — 73
Disposal (note (ii)) & (B & (i) (712) —
At 31 March 2007 R-EBEZELtF=A=+—H 271 983
Accumulated impairment: ZERE :
At 1 April KA —H 733 733
Written back on disposal (note (ii) o R O (A EEG)) (712) —
At 31 March R=A=+—H 21 733
Carrying amount: BREE :
At 31 March R=A=+—8H 250 250
Note: Htat -
(i) On 2 January 2007, the Group acquired an additional 49% (i) RZZFZTLF—HA=H ' KEEUWKHEBright

interest in Bright Rainbow Investments Limited for a
consideration of HK$1,000, satisfied by cash. As a result, a
goodwill of HK$73,000 was arisen from this acquisition.

(if)

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group had

(if)

written back the cost and accumulated impairment of
goodwill of HK$712,000 upon the completion of the
voluntarily wind-up of Highlight International Investment

Limited.

Goodwill is accounted for in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies as set out in note 2(d).

BE o

Rainbow Investments Limited 2 %8 449 % #

=+ KB A1,000% T -
Bt v b URR EE A P B 73,0005

AR 32 A o

JC °

RBE-TZENF=A=+—HILFE ' R®
TRENERREGRAB 2B BERIR

AEEBERDGEZKAN
712,000/ 7T °

X Z &t R E

BEEDERME2DFHE 2 A EB ST HEA

EEHECZRSELBEUZRERE

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing
goodwill

BEDIARBERTEREHREITRBERS

AERTBEEMIEESERMOEEAR
SEzReELEN([(ReELEM]) -

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating unit
("CGU") in relation to the provision of beauty and slimming
services in Hong Kong and the PRC and trading of cosmetic
and skin care product in the PRC.

AeELSU 2B SR REREEFE
TEEBE WEFENTERARREEED
REZOAFHRYBREFLZRESRER

Al e

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period.
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16. Goodwill (Continued) 16. P (&)
Key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculations are: ERBEGEFEMAZEERRE
2008 and 2007
TEENFR-ZZLHF
— Gross margin —E =X 5% — 15%
— Discount rate —BhIR X 12%
Management determined the budgeted gross margin based EREREBEBERERETSEEZESRM
on past performance and its expectation for market EEEEENE - IEMRZARESTA -
development. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect I & B E R o

specific risks.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is greater than its ReELENz B eERRNERAE -
carrying amount. Any adverse change in assumptions could BREZERMTFESH AR AKRE 2EEE
reduce the recoverable amount below carrying amount. REREE -

17.  Investments in and Amounts due from/to Subsidiaries 17. M A 7l Z 58 R HE W T A B g 2 7]

HH
The Company
PN
2008 2007
—E¥ENE —TTF
HK$’000 HK$°000
Fi# T FAET
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETMRRG - B 3,664 3,664
Less: impairment loss B B B 1R (3,660) (3,660)
4 4
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE s T J88 2 /) FRIE 76,020 36,977
Less: impairment loss JB Rk (A s 1R (18,873) (18,873)
57.147 18,104
Amounts due to subsidiaries N NGIE ] 4,164 4,903
The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, U FEMMEB AR RIEAEIER - 22 K&
interest free and repayable on demand. BIREREE o
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17.

Investments in and Amounts due from/to Subsidiaries  17.

(Continued)

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the

S (&)

Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise #F

stated.

Name of company

AL

Sau San Tong Holdings Inc.

(note (i) (HizE()

Sau San Tong China Holdings
Limited (formerly, Sau San
Tong Healthy Trim Institute
(H.K.) Limited) (317 Sau San
Tong Healthy Trim
Institute (H.K.) Limited)
(note (i) (Af#()

Smartime International
Investments Limited
ERERREERAR
(note (i) (Airz£()

Sau San Tong China
Investment Limited
(formerly, Dragon Gate
Holdings Limited) (£17 Dragon
Gate Holdings Limited)
(note (i) (Af#()

Wise Fortune Holdings
Corporation (note (i) (Hfz (i)

Brilliant Concept Company
Limited (note (i) (Hf&()

Bright Rainbow Investments
Limited (note (i) (Hf&()

Sau San Tong Beauty Figure
Limited £ 5 £ ER A A

Place of
incorporation

MR L
British Virgin Islands
EERAES

British Virgin Islands
EBRAES

British Virgin Islands
ABRAEE

British Virgin Islands
EBRAES

British Virgin Islands
ABRAEE

British Virgin Islands
EBRAES

British Virgin Islands
ABRAEE

Hong Kong

Place of
operation

EXBY
Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
&E

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
&%

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
i

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
BRIRBERAZE

1,000 shares of US$1 each
1,000 Bk EE
1%L 2R

1 share of US$1 each
REREEI1ETZRA

1 share of US$1 each
REREEI1ZETLRE

100 shares of US$ 1 each
1008 REE
1En2R{3

10 shares of US$1 each
10EEREE1ZT 2 KA

1 share of US$1 each
REREEI1ZTZRE

100 shares of US$1 each
100k SRAEE
(ESd) 4

10,000 shares of HK$1 each
10,000% B R EE
1B T2kl

Proportion of ownership interest

EARESZLD
Group's

effective Held by
interest ~ Held by subsidiary
KE@Z  company HE
BBER HAARE LFAER
100% 100% =
100% 100% —
100% 100% =
100% 100% =
100% 100% =
100% — 100%
100% = 100%
100% = 100%

TR B 2\ ] & B e EHE A B 4 7

UTHEERRIBYEASTEER  BE
KBEZHBARFE - RABEHIN - A
BRI R BB

Principal activities

TEXR

Investment holding

RERRK

Investment holding
REHR

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

RERRK

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding
REHR

Provision of
management
consultation services

REEEAARE

Sale of health and
beauty products

HERREZRER

EFEERERAT ZOONEFR
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17. Investments in and Amounts due from/to Subsidiaries — 17. M2 a] Z #& & T e~ JE f Bf i 2 5]

(Continued) HIH (&)
Proportion of ownership interest
BAERELA
Group's
effective Held by
Place of Place of Particulars of issued interest ~ Held by subsidiary

Name of company incorporation operation  and paid up capital KEEZ  company Bt Principal activities

ARIER ERAELEE EEnY BRARBRRAXE EBREZ ALAKE LFIBE TEZEH

Sau San Tong Medical Hong Kong Hong Kong 18,750 shares of HK$1 each ~ 100% — 100%  Provision of beauty
Cosmetology Healthy Trim B b 18,750 BREE and slimming
Institute Limited (formerly, 1AL 2R services
Sau San Tong Herbal REXARGERE
Medicine Company Limited)

BaEERRXREREE
RERLERAR
(MBEAEEXERAA)

Sau San Tong Medical Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$1 each  100% — 100%  Provision of beauty
Cosmetology Healthy Trim Bk B 10,000 B R E & and slimming
Institute (TST) Limited 1B ZRA services
(formerly, Sunnic REXARBERY
Development Limited)

EHEREIRNERERE
b (RD8E) ERAF
(ARENERBRAR)

Sau San Tong Medical Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each 100% — 100%  Provision of beauty
Cosmetology Healthy Trim B b 100k 8 REME and slimming centre
Institute (Causeway Bay) 1AL 2R R REXAREERE
Limited (formerly, Fully
Profit Limited)

BaERRXRREREE
REmL (HEE) FRAR
(AREmERRAR)

Sau San Tong Management Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each 100% — 100%  Provision of
Limited b b 1005 B REE BT LKA management

EAEERERAA consultation services

REEEZARE

Sau San Tong Health Food Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each 100% — 100%  Sale of health products

EFERERRARAA Bk Bk 1008 8 REE 17T R HERREM

SST Advertising Agency Limited ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$1 each ~ 100% — 100%  Provision of advertising

Bt REREERAR B B 10,0005 8 R E & agency services

1L 2R REEERERE

Sau San Tong (Shanghai) British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong 1,000 shares of US$1 each 50% — 50% Investment holding
Limited (formerly, REEOES b 100088 REE1ZTZ RN REER
Simply Beauty Limited) (note (i)

(717 Simply Beauty
Limited) (4#3()
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17. Investments in and Amounts due from/to Subsidiaries — 17. M2 a] Z #& & T HEW -~ JE i Bf i 2 7]

(Continued) FhIE (&)
Proportion of ownership interest
BAERELA
Group's
effective Held by
Place of Place of Particulars of issued interest  Held by subsidiary
Name of company incorporation operation  and paid up capital KEEZ  company Bt Principal activities
PEEL ERAELEE EEnY BRARBERAHE EBREZ ALAKE LFABE TEZEH
Sau San Tong Healthy Trim British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each 51% — 51%  Investment holding
Institute (Hangzhou) Limited ~ EBRXHS b 1008 8REBIETZRR REAR
(formerly, Goldtime Enterprises
Corporation) (note (i)
(178 Goldtime Enterprises
Corporation) (ff#(i))
FE—EBEABRAA (note (i) The PRC The PRC Registered capital US$150,000  50% — 50%  Provision of a beauty
(Fi 2t (i) i i & 4150,000% 7T and slimming
services
RUZARGRRE
FERGBLHERRAT The PRC The PRC Registered capital US$5,000,000 51% - 51%  Distribution sale of
(note (i) (K& (i) i i & 75,000,000 1T cosmetic and skin
care products
AHAEMARR
EEEM
—TEBARE(RIN)ERLE  The PRC The PRC Registered capital US$3,500,000 51% — 51%  Provision of beauty
(note (iv)) (Hiz(iv) B EF F&K3,500,000F T and slimming
services
RUZARGRRE
~EREREXEMM BRAR  The PRC The PRC Registered capital US$3,500,000 51% - 51%  Provision of beauty
(note (v)) (B1&®) EF G & 73,500,000% 7T and slimming
services
RUEZARBERE
Highlight International Trading Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each 100% = 100%  Investment holding
Limited (formerly, Easy Take &% i 100 SREE BT ZRA REARRK
Slimming Centre (TST) Limited)
SREREZERARD (HREGH
HESZAE (RDB)FRAR)
Sau San Tong Medical Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Cosmetology Healthy Trim Bk i 100% S REE BT ZRA REARRK
Institute (Shatin) Limited
EaEB2XRNERE
ERBRL(PH)ERAA
Sau San Tong (Shanghai) British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong 10 shares of HK$1 each 50% — 50% Inactive
Development Limited REEOES B 10RERAEIEL LKA TRER

(note (i) (A& ()

EFEERERAT ZOONEFR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ([ 2 & 85N - 5B TTFIR)

17. Investments in and Amounts due from/to Subsidiaries — 17. M2 a] Z #& & T e~ JE f Bf i 2 5]

(Continued) HIH (&)
Proportion of ownership interest
FHEEEGL
Group's
effective Held by
Place of Place of Particulars of issued interest ~ Held by subsidiary
Name of company incorporation operation  and paid up capital KEEZ  company Bt Principal activities
ARIER ERAELEE EEnY BEARMERAZE ENEE ALARE LARE IEER
Sau San Tong (Beijing) Investments ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each 100% — 100%  Investment holding
Limited (note (i) (&) AERRES i 1008 & REE RERZR
(formerly, Sau San Tong 1AL 2R R

(Guangzhou) Investment
Limited (A0 Sau San
Tong (Guangzhou)
Investment Limited)

Sau San Tong China British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong 10 shares of HK$1 each 100% 100% —  Investment holding
Development Limited REROES &b 10RERAEE BT LKA REER
(formerly, Pacific Express
Enterprises Limited) (note (i)

(Ff &£ () (B8 Pacific Express
Enterprises Limited)

Machiko Enterprises Inc. (note (i) ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each 100% — 100%  Investment holding
(Ha() EBRAES &% 100RERAE1ET KA REARK

Wealthy Sound Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each 100% — 100%  Inactive

it N i &k WREREE AT 2R gre%

Sau San Tong Healthy Trim British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each 51% = 51%  Investment holding
Institute (Shenzhen) Limited ~ XERXEHE BE 1008 8 REE 17T R RARRK

(formerly, Bright Base
Holdings Limited) (note (i)
(Kiz(i)) (717 Bright Base
Holdings Limited)

Gold Lane International Holdings  British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each 100% 100% — Inactive
Limited (note (i) (& () EERAES &k 100RERAE AT LK Ezez
Victory Assets Holdings British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong 10 shares of HK$1 each 100% 100% — Investment holding
Limited (note (i) (&) ERRAES it 108 R EE 15T 2RI REHER
Winner Sight Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each 100% — 100%  Inactive
BEARAH i &k WREREE BT R fEez
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17. Investments in and Amounts due from/to Subsidiaries 17. AW A ] 2 B 5 T HE W HE fof [ g 4w

(Continued) IH (&)

Note: Kz -

(i) The financial statements of these entities are not required (i) BEZEEEIMRIZBREBELEHE
to be audited under the laws of the British Virgin Islands, O ZEBRB M RRBALER °
the country of incorporation.

(i) The financial statements of F/& —FE B8R AR A a for (i) EBE—EBEREARRAREBZE_ZZNFK
the financial year ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 —EEEF+ A=+ —HULEVBREFEZY
prepared under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles BRETDBEFRBEER 2 ARG RAUE
applicable in the PRC have been audited by E/§ Rz &5 g WAHEERTSHMEBMERARE
MEBHAERAA. % o

(iiiy  The financial statements of F/& & 41 H{L $5E AR 2 7 for (i) LEERFALHEEESRARNBE_ZEZENF
the financial year ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 EZZETLF+A=+—HILEMERFEEZ
prepared under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles MG mER DIREFREEA 2 AR g REG
applicable in the PRC have been audited by 37 {= & 5t fifl =& B WHVESHRMEBMERARER
BARARAAE.

(iv)  The financial statements of —E S & & R#% CEIJI) AR A (iv) —EFES RS RN ﬁ@ﬁﬁj@iﬁ:g%
A for the financial year ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 NER-ZFRLFE+ A=+ — El\y:‘ﬁz@ﬁaﬁ
prepared under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles EZE{%?&%E*E%#JE@?HZL%%ﬁE
applicable in the PRC have been audited by FIJ|F E S5 %J@% CXEAYREEAMEBMERA
ME=BFAERRAR. T3 A% o

(v)  The financial statements of —E S & fEXEE (M) AR A (v) —EEABXEGINERARAE-FT
A for the financial year ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 NER-ZFRLFE+ A=+ — El\y:‘ﬁz@ﬁaﬁ
prepared under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles EZET%ﬁﬁﬁ*E%EE@%Z%EE%E+E
applicable in the PRC have been audited by #1/l # % € &t %J@% CYEAMEREHMEBMERA
MEBHRARA . A& -

18. Inventories 8. #R
(a) Inventories in the balance sheet comprise: () BEERBXRAZEFERE:
The Group
rEEH
2008 2007
—EENEF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FAET
Consumables B FE G — 54
Merchandise BURL @ 6,689 15,810
6,689 15,864

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) BRARHAXZFESHIMNAOT :
recognised as an expense is as follows:

2008 2007

—EENE —ETLF

HK$'000 HK$°000

FHET FAET

Carrying amount of inventories sold E&EFE Z KM E 330,464 327,961

EFEERERAT ZOONEEFHR 79
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

19. Trade and Other Receivables

19.  MEW 5 55wk JH Je KAl HE W sk T

The Group The Company
AEE KA T

2008 2007 2008 2007

“EENF —FTLF ZBEN\EFE _TTLF

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET FET FET

Trade receivables EUE 5708 35,968 24,814 — —

Less: allowance for B REREE B

doubtful debts (326) (136) — —

35,642 24,678 — —

Other receivables (note (7)) ¥ ff f& WK I8 (B 22 (1) 15,953 4,782 809 —
Deposits and e RENKRIE

prepayments (note (i) (K1 E) 12,519 12,081 2,097 114

28,472 16,863 2,906 114

64,114 41,542 2,906 114

All trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered
or recognised as expense within one year.

Note:
(i) Included in the other receivables were advances to slimming
business partners of HK$8,084,000 (2007: HK$1,638,000);
prepayment for the set up of new slimming projects in the
PRC of HK$4,277,000 (2007: HK$Nil); and advances to staff
of HK$2,478,000 (2007: HK$1,622,000).

(ii) Included in the deposits and prepayments were trade deposits
of HK$4,775,000 (2007: HK$3,798,000) and prepayments
for the acquisition of a trademark of HK$1,915,000 (2007:

HK$Nil).

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008
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STAEMEURIE SRS BERBERMNZ
X 15 8,084,000 5t (=T T £ F
1,638,000/ 70)  HAAR B A% ST 48 RS R 0N IR
B 7 T 3K184,277,000% T (Z BT 4F -
L) - ARME T8 2 5I82,478,000
B (ZZEZL4F 1 1,622,00087T) °

(i)

TARS RBENREBEAE SRS4,775,000
BT (ZZEZT £ : 3,798,000 70) M Uk EE
B2 2 fE I8 1,915,000 T (— 2T +
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ([ 2 & 85N - B TTFIR)

19.

Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

(a)

Ageing analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are trade
receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts) with
the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet
date:

19.

JE e 57 5 sk T e HE A B WA sk I (78D

(a)

IR iR 2 47

FEARYE 5508 R B MR W RIB R R
WE 5308 (IR REREE) - ERER
BZRREEDHTIMT

The Group
rEE

2008 2007

—EENEFE —EELEF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

Current B HA 30,689 18,466

Less than one month past due mE LR 1EAR 4,518 2,698

1 to 2 months past due w1 =218 A 136 1,571

More than 2 months but less wHI2 = 41E A

than 4 months past due 46 1,923
More than 4 months but less mHEI4Z= 1218 B

than 12 months past due 186 20

More than 12 months past due B AR 218 A A £ 67 —

Amounts past due BE S EE 4,953 6,212

35,642 24,678

Trade receivables are due within 30 to 60 days from
the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s
credit policy are set out in note 30(a).

EFEERERAT ZOONEFH 81
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19.

(b)

(B = BEHAN - BHUBTIIR)

Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 19. FEN B 5 7k Je H il JE Wk JH (48
Impairment of trade receivables (b) EWEZRERE
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are FEW B 5 5/ I8 2 R M8 I 18 Th i A 2 Bk
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group L8R - BRIEANER B M @ % sk IE 2 A]
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in EUERE  ZZBEAT  REBEEE
which case the impairment loss is written off against REWE 5 IE M (R HEE2(9)3) °
trade receivables directly (see note 2(g)(i)).
The movement in the allowance for doubtful debt FA - RERE (BEERRERERE
during the year, including both specific and collective ) 2 2BMT
loss components, is as follows:
The Group
rEE
2008 2007
ZEENF —EELEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHE T
At 1 April RMEA—H 136 129
Impairment loss recognised B R 2B (EEE 362 7
Reversal of impairment loss R (B &5 18 5 [l (172) =
At 31 March R=A=+—H 326 136
Trade receivables that are not impaired () UEBEEZERESRE

(c)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a
good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008
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At 31 March 2008, the bank loans were repayable as
follows:

20. Amounts due from Related Parties 20.  JEN N L 5H
2008 2007
—EENF —EETEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Amounts due from minority shareholders  J& Uz 2> £ % 3R 30 18 17,482 10,327
Amounts due from related &l & B i
companies (note) AR (HfE) 5,718 —
23,200 10,327
Note: The director of a minority shareholder and a staff of a fyet  —2PBRRZESR—EMBARIZET
subsidiary has beneficial interest in each of the related FEEREEEEARIHEERER °
company respectively.
The amounts due from related parties are unsecured, FEWRRE:E A THRIB AEKM - B L ERE
interest-free and repayable on demand. SKIEE o
21. Cash and Cash Equivalents 21. Bl RB£FEY
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF ZEELFE ZBEENF ZEELHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEIT FET FEIT
Cash and bank and RIT R
in hand FHERE 50,493 20,533 51 314
Included in the cash at bank was a deposit of HK$5,539,000 STARTHREARASEEER 2RTREM
(2007: HK$Nil) pledged at a bank in respect of bank facilities T — ﬁEfﬁZﬁ%y’(ﬁ,539,000i%ﬁ (==
granted to the Group (see note 22). THF: TET) (RKTEE22) ©
22, Bank Loans, Secured 22, RITE - FHKH

R-ZZBEENF=ZR=+—0  RITERAR
AT BRI E R

The Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EENEF —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —FR 22,131 10,110

At 31 March 2008, the Group had revolving bank loan
facilities of HK$22,711,000 (2007: HK$10,110,000) upon
which interest was charged at rate of 6.57% per annum
(2007: ranged from 5.85% to 6.12% per annum) and were
secured by:

(i)  a corporate guarantee given by the Company (2007:
corporate guarantees given by two third-party
companies, under which a staff of the Group is the
director of these companies);

R-ZBEENFZA=Z+—H8 A&EEHEEHE
RIBTTERFE 22,711,000 T (Z 2+
& 110,110,000 L) * AFFIFE6.57% (=
TRLF FRENF585%E6.12%) &t
B WA THSEEEM

(i) ARRARUZDBER(CETLEF:
MEFE = ARREZRFER - o
REB —HRETIRZERFZES)

EFEERERAT —OONEFH 83
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(B = BEHAN - BHUBTIIR)

Bank Loans, Secured (Continued) 22, RITEZ » A (&)
(i) pledged bank deposits of HK$5,539,000 (2007: (i) BEMBITERS,539,0008 T (ZFF
HK$Nil); and +F T &
(iiiy properties owned by certain staff of the Group (2007: (i) AEEETEIHBEZYWHE(ZZEZT £
None). F ) o
The amount utilised by the Group as at 31 March 2008 RZZZENF=RA=+—H ' XEERIEKE L
under the above banking facilities was HK$22,131,000 MIRITRMEFMENA 2 ©5 /522,131,000 7T
(2007: HK$10,110,000). (ZZEZ+4F : 10,110,000 L) °
Trade and Other Payables 23, JEN B 5k I R K A sk B
The Group The Company
rEH AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENF —FTLF ZBEN\EFE _TTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHE T FETT FET
Trade creditors B SRR 15,004 16,312 — —
Other payables and H b ERARIAR
accrued charges JEET & H 21,699 22,827 810 939
36,703 39,139 810 939

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be
settled or recognised as income within one year or are
repayable on demand. Included in trade and other payables
are trade creditors with the following ageing analysis as of
the balance sheet date:

FiT 8 & 5 B 5 5R008 I H i & S OB TR IS R
—FRFERERRBRARAZERER -
AAABRNESFRREMENRBRENE
SR ERBEERBZRESTAT ¢

The Group
AEE

2008 2007
—EENF —TELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FAET
Due within 1 month or on demand P VE B A 2 5k i 2 Hf 14,347 14,933
Due after 1 month but within 3 months R1ZE3(E A K E|H 644 238
Due after 3 months but within 12 months A 3Z 1218 A A & & 13 1,141
15,004 16,312
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24.

\G)
Ot

(B = BEHRN - BUBTIIR)

Loan and Interest Payable to a Director 24. JEN—HZEFLEHRFE
The Group and the Company
AEBRARQF
2008 2007
—EENE —EELEF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET TET
Principal PN — 5,366
Interest payable JE A R 2 — 219
— 5,585
The loan payable to a director of the Company, Dr. Cheung ENAARESESREMBEL 2 ER AEIE
Yuk Shan, Shirley, is unsecured, interest bearing at 5% per O IREFE5Y (ZEELE - EF|E5%)
annum (2007: 5% per annum) and repayable on demand. HERBRERES
Obligations under Finance Leases 25. [ & E R IE
At 31 March 2008, the Group had obligations under finance R-ZBEENE=A=+—H "&EEZ@#E
leases repayable as follows: HMEAERABENAT :
The Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum  minimum  minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BEERN BEERN SEEN SEREN
HeEzHE HELHE HezRE HLER
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET TET FET
Within 1 year 16 A 302 320 834 812
After 1 year but within  1Z2F R
2 years — — 232 320
302 320 1,066 1,132
Less: total future interest J&f : A& R F| 2
expenses 4258 (18) (66)
Present value of lease HERE B
obligations 302 1,066

EFEERERAT ZOONEFH 85
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26. Income Tax in the Balance Sheet 26. BEAGEFENZIHH
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated balance () HREEEABRAZEHHERE:
sheet represents:
The Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETEF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FER F&T
Provision for the PRC income & A A B P A5 A0 B 4
tax for the year (note 8(a)) (Kt :£8(a)) 1,684 6,865
Provisional tax paid SRR (1,487) (3,395)
197 3,470
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERRAZELEHREBEEREE :
(i) The Group (i) *&5H
The components of deferred tax liabilities/ RIEEEEABRBERCELER
(assets) recognised in the consolidated balance I:E\E\{f/ (BE)BHERERNZ
sheet and the movements during the year are FEmT
as follows:
Depreciation
allowances
in excess of Other
the related temporary
depreciation differences
Deferred tax arising from: Tax loss  TERE Hit Total
UTREMEEZELRE BEFE BHARENTE EREH G #

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
FAT FBT FBT FAT

At 1 April 2006 RZZEEAFWA—A (183) (183) = (366)
Charged to BEmME

profit or loss 183 183 — 366
At 31 March 2007 R-ZBZ+F=A=+—H — — — —
At 1 April 2007 RZZETLFMA—H — — — —
Charged to BiE&ME

profit or loss — — 114 114
Effect of change TEREH) 25

in tax rates — — 175 175
Under-provision BAEFERETR

in prior years — — 2,752 2,752
At 31 March 2008 R-ZZEENF=HA=+—H — — 3,041 3,041
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26.

Income Tax in the Balance Sheet (Continued)
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:

(i) At 31 March 2008, the Group has not
recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of HK$14,961,000 (2007:
HK$16,418,000) as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in relevant tax
jurisdiction and entity. Of the total tax losses,
HK$3,128,000 will be expired within 5 years
and the remaining tax losses of HK$11,833,000
have no expiry date under the current tax
legislation.

(i) The Company

No deferred tax assets or liabilities have been
made in the financial statements as the
Company does not have any temporary
differences.

Defined Contribution Retirement Plans

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme"”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The scheme is administered by an independent trustee.

Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group and the eligible
employees make monthly mandatory contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The mandatory contributions by each party are subject to a
maximum of HK$1,000 per month. Contributions to the
scheme vest immediately upon the completion of service in
the relevant service period.

At 31 March 2008, certain employees of the Group had
completed the required number of years of service under
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (the “Ordinance”)
and are eligible for long service payments on termination
of their employment. The Group is only liable to make
such payments when the termination meets the required
circumstances specified in the Ordinance and the employees’
entitlement is not covered by the aforesaid provident fund.
At 31 March 2008, the Group’s contributions to the
provident funds and the accrued interest thereon exceeded
the potential liabilities should the required circumstances
specified in the Ordinance be met.

(B = BEHRN - BUBTIIR)

26.

HEREHEAZ P36 (&
() ABRELHBEEE :

() R—_ZTEETN\E=F=+—H &
REBBERE A EER R EETR
K A]RE A K oK FE SR R & A BT &)
BEiE - MAEELER R E
#5418 14,961,000 T (Z BT +
F : 16,418,000/ 7T) HERIELT
HEE - HEBBEBEEF
3,128,000 JT#& A 54F A JE i -
mer TR IEE 811,833,000/ 7T
BERTHEILERRA -

(i) #27

R 78 2w S AT ] A 2R
B B TS 3R R P R A
HEEHAME -

JRAE HE sk 2B 1 it &)

AEERBERERHMEABE S ERII AR
BEEERREIRIZEEEER ZEBERY
BHEMEAERE ([BRERFE)) - 5H8H
BYXTEABRE -

RBEBRESTE  ARBREERERSA
AIBHIEAEETEGROIETARE ZE
BRBALRZ5%RT&IEHHERR - 575258
ISR EPR A8 A 1,000/ 7T © [T &I T
2 BRI B B AR 75 A T 9 52 B AR 75 s RO By BB

R-ZBZENF=ZA=+—H AEEETE
SEERERERGH (RGP ET 2R
ERBFEHY  TAEBRRERLZERE
SRR AKEEAERLETAZKE
PIEEZBRATHAELNRK  MERASE
ZEBI AR EAHRBSRE - R_FFN
F=Z=A=+—RB  AEERHEBES(ELZH
AR EZRFNEBBBRRTAZEIIEEZ
BRZEERAE -
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Defined Contribution Retirement Plans (Continued)

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in
defined contribution retirement schemes covering its full-
time PRC employees. The schemes are administered by the
relevant government authorities in the PRC. The Group and
the PRC employees are required to make contributions based
on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs as
stipulated under the requirements in the PRC and the
relevant government authorities undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future
retired employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.

Equity Settled Share-based Transactions

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 4 November 2003. The purpose
of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to
grant options to eligible participants as incentives or rewards
for their contribution or potential contribution to the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries. Eligible participants
of the Share Option Scheme include full-time or part-time
employees, executives or officers (including executive, non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors)
of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries and any
supplies, consultants, agents or advisers who, in the sole
opinion of the Board, have contributed to the Company
and/or such subsidiaries.

Share options are granted to the eligible participants at nil
consideration. The options are exercisable from the date of
grant within a period ranging from 5.0 to 9.2 years of
respective option plans. Each option gives the holder the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option plans of the Company at any time shall not
exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option plans of the
Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) to each eligible participant in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant in excess of 1% of the number of
shares in issue as at the date of grant, are subject to the
Company issuing a circular and the approval from the
Company’s shareholders in a general meeting.
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28.

(B = BEHRN - BUBTIIR)

Equity Settled Share-based Transactions (Continued) 28, WEZBEMZBRHBR G (&

The exercise price for a share in respect of any particular RIFBRETSIRE 2 EMEEERE &

option granted under the Share Option Scheme (which shall REBRAD 217 E (AEITEBEREREM)

be payable upon exercise of the option) shall be such price JEHEEFE2HRTE @ HEZEBEBTEERI
as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save RORTEEBBR(MWEREFER) EBRZMA
that such price will not be less than the highest of (i) the WMERTMIERNKAE  (DRDRBEERL

official closing price of the shares as stated in the daily H A A {6 & 2% B e B S P B S R Ak 2 F

quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of HRTHE : R(iNROEE (R&KSERE) °

grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the

closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s

daily quotations sheet for the five business days immediately

preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of

a share.

The period during which an option may be exercised will BRiEZITEHEHESSEEAT - B

be determined by the Board as its absolute discretion, save RERLBBAFETEITE - BERES

that no option may be exercised more than five years after SlgERBEGHR TFRAIEREER

it has been granted. No option may be granted more than BE o

10 years after the date of approval of the Share Option

Scheme.

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed (@) REAGFTEZHEHERREHEDNT - &
during the year are as follows, whereby all options Ut FIEBREDUNEDR RN ZH
are settled by physical delivery of shares: NEHE -

Contractual life
Number of of options
instruments BREZ
IA%H EHNEM
Options granted to directors: RTEFZHBRE :
— on 10 September 2004 RZZEZTNFENATH 10,000,000 9.2 years
9.2
Options granted to employees: ETEE ZHERE :
— on 2 September 2004 TN ENA - H 1,000,000 5.0 yeag
5.0
— on 20 May 2005 RZEERFRA=TH 800,000 5.0 yeag
5.0
— on 6 September 2005 RZZZEMNENANHE 12,890,000 5.0 years
5.0%F
14,690,000
Total share options MR E 2 24,690,000
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28.  Equity Settled Share-based Transactions (Continued) 28, WEZBEMZRHBR G (FE)
(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of (b) MEREHERMEFHTEEET :
share options are as follows:
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price  of options
e 15 BRE MNETH R
TEE 2A TEE 2B
HK$ HK$
ET BT
Outstanding at the BT 18 R AT
beginning of the period 0.496 30,090,000 0.462 39,390,000
Forfeited during the period 7 HA A2 U 0.486 (5,400,000) 0.351  (9,300,000)
Outstanding at the end P HR AR 1R R AT (3R
of the period 0.499 24,690,000 0.496 30,090,000
Exercisable at the end MBI AT AT
of the period 0.499 24,690,000 0.496 30,090,000
The options outstanding at 31 March 2008 had an R-BENF=ZA=+—AHKITER
exercise price in the range of HK$0.487 to HK$0.534 H_QTEZ?TT?&E?T?OAS?}%ZEEO.SM;%
(2007: HK$0.486 to HK$0.535) and a weighted T (ZZE L : 048618 TE0.535%
average remaining contractual life of 3.66 years (2007: JC)  MEFHFGE N FEH B3.66F
4.15 years). ZEELF : 4155F) o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

28.

Equity Settled Share-based Transactions (Continued)

(c)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the
fair value of the share options granted is measured
based on a Black Scholes model. The contractual life
of the share option is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into
the Black Scholes model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

(B = BEHRN - BUBTIIR)

28.

Wzt IR 55 (48

(c)

BREAFERRERR

MERH 2 BEREEWEURE 2 2 FE
T2ERRHEREZ X FERE -
REBRE A IREHEELG
it BhREZAENFHAZEBEA ZEA
2B EHERACERERETRZE
Hi o

BRE R FERER

Date of grant

BH A
10 September 20 May 6 September
2004 2005 2005
—EETNEF —EETREF —ETEF
hA+H EA=+H LAXH
Fair value at measurement date  RETEHAHZ AT E HK$0.142 HK$0.157 HK$0.127
0.142% T 0.157% T 01278 T
Share price & 19 (B 1% HK$0.600 HK$0.510 HK$0.480
0.600% 7T 0.510% 7T 0.4807%8 7T
Exercise price IEE HK$0.512 HK$0.534 HK$0.487
0.5128 T 0.5347% 7T 0.487% T
Expected volatility (expressed as 78 21/ i@
weighted average volatility (AEHERXA
used in the modelling R 2 i
under Black Scholes model) SR 18 5 ) 55.79% 58.41% 53.16%
Option life (expressed as % A% 7 4 B 9.2 years 5.0 years 5.0 years
weighted average volatility (AEHEXR 9.2%F 5.04F 5.04F
used in the modelling L 2 e
under Black Scholes model) 1458 18 51| 7R)
Expected dividends TEE AR B 3.85% 3.73% 3.96%
Risk-free interest rate 4 3 B ) = 2.30% 2.50% 2.50%

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining
life of the share options), adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on
historical dividends. Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

There were no market conditions associated with the
share option grants.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B %A iEREIN + HABTIIR)
29. Capital and Reserves 29. BARR#F
(a) The Group (a) &A%
The PRC
Share-based ~ statutory
payment  surplus Minority
Share Share  Merger Exchange  reserve  reserve  (Capital Accumulated interests Total
capital  premium  reserve reserve Rt #EEE  reserve  losses Total S8 equity
Re  RERE AUEE EXRE GREE BHEE EARE  ZiEA 2% RRER
Note HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
i3 Tén Tt FEr TEr ThAr  tEr  FEr  TEr  thAr  fAr  TEn
At 1 April 2006 RZEE5E
mA-A
— as previously reported  —~ A2 5 6,669 4538 (3,652) (44) 2,219 399 — (20,577) 30,356 5331 35,687
—prior period errorin - ~HEERLH
respect of equity LROX S
setfled share-based  ZEIEIE R
transactions 3 - - - - 1,558 - - (1,558) - - -
— as restated ~&J 6,609 45,342 (3,652) (44) 3717 399 — (22,135) 30,356 5,331 35,687
Exchange difference on ~ AESHHBAF
translation of the pAID £
financial statements of ~ FEEZ
overseas subsidiaries  EXZE - - - 5 - 18 - - i3 236 309
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - — (1450 (21.457) 5510 (15,947)
Arising from acquisition  KEMHBAF
of additional interests %)
in subsidiaries fES - - - - - - 100 - 100 95 195
Cancellation of share ~ F#BRE
options - - - - (462) - — 462 — — -
Appropriation to the ~~ AEZEH
PRC statutory surplus EEREE
reserve - - - - - 2 - 27) - - -
Capital injection from ~~ H#EE
minority shareholders ~ FAEA - - - - - - - - - 5391 5391
Minority interests arising £ 4 55
from business EEIOH
combination hEER - - - - - - - - - i 3
At 31 March 2007 RIBEL%
(restated) =R=1-R(E%) 6,669 45,342 (3,652) " 3315 444 100 (43,157) 9,072 16,636 25,708
At 1 April 2007 RZE2+EMA-A
— as previously reported  —~ A2 5 6,609 4538 (3,652) " 1,757 444 100 (41,599) 9,072 16,636 25,708
— prior period errorin - BBRHR M2
respect of equity kh sz
setfled share-based  FTEIE R
transactions 3 - - - - 1,558 - — (1,558) — — -
— as restated —&j 6,609 45,342 (3,652) il 3315 444 100 (43,157) 9,072 16,636 25,708
Bchange difference ~ BEEIKE
on translation of AalZHBRE
financial statements of  FHEEZERZS
overseas subsidiaries - - - 664 - - - 31 695 3,08 3777
Profit for the year EREF - - - - - - - (55) (55) 1804 1,839
Issue of shares EfR{ 29(c)(i) 2930 47,146 = = - - - - 50076 - 50076
Share issue expenses  RAETHR - (1,562) - = = = = = (1,562) = (1,562)
Realisation of capital ~ EARGEER
reserve — — — — - - (100) — (100) - (100)
Capital injection from Y &#KE
minority shareholders  FAZX - - - - - - - - - 7,46 7,246
Realisation of merges W EEEHE—E
reserve upon disposal IR AIEA B
of a subsidiary REZR
in prior year = = 15 = = = = = 15 = 15
Appropriation to the PRC AEZFEAT
Statutory surplus resenve B A - - - — - 340 - (340) = = =
At 31 March 2008 RZTENE
Zh=1-A 9,599 90,926 (3,637) 675 3315 784 - (43,521) 58,141 28,858 86,999
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ([ 2 & 85N - B TTFIR)

29. Capital and Reserves (Continued) 29. BARLK M ()
The Company (b) AT
Share-based
Share Share payment  Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve losses equity
R A& RABEE BROCERERE ZiEE BREE
Note HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fiaE FET FAT FEL FiEr FAL

At 1 April 2006 RZZ2E EMA-A
— as previously reported — AT 2R 6,669 45,342 2,219 (24,182) 30,048
— prior period error in -BRREEIMZ

respect of equity settled B’HR 52

share-based transactions Al B3R R 3 = = 1,558 (1,558) —
— as restated - 6,669 45,342 3,777 (25,740) 30,048
Cancellation of share FHERE

options — — (462) 462 —
Loss for the year ENER — - — (22,939) (22,939)
At 31 March 2007 i e 2
(restated) ZRA=t+-R(&]) 6,669 45,342 3315 (48,217) 7,109

At 1 April 2007 RZZZ+5MA—-H
— as previously reported — AT 2R 6,669 45,342 1,757 (46,659) 7,109
— prior period error in - BRI

respect of equity settled BB 5

share-based transactions AR 3 = = 1,558 (1,558) —
— as restated -85 6,669 45,342 3,315 (48,217) 7,109
Issue of shares BEARM 29(c)(ii) 2,930 47,147 — = 50,077
Share issue expenses RAETRS — (1,562) — — (1,562)
Loss for the year FRER — — — (490) (490)
At 31 March 2008 RZZENE

=A=t-H 9,599 90,927 3,315 (48,707) 55,134
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

29. Capital and Reserves (Continued) 29. BARK G (&
(c) Share capital () BR
(i) Authorised and issued share capital (i) ZEREBITERA
2008 2007
“EENf e S
Number of Number of
shares shares
RGHE BESOE ¢!
Note ('000) HK$'000 ("000) HK$'000
fit st (FR) FET (F&) FAET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of BREMGOIET
HK$0.01 each TRk 1,500,000 15,000 1,500,000 15,000
Ordinary share, issued EER BEfT
and fully paid: RER:
At 1 April REA—H 666,900 6,669 666,900 6,669
Issue of shares ZIIRH 29(c)(ii) 292,980 2,930 — —
At 31 March R=R=+—H 959,880 9,599 666,900 6,669
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to TERFEEAARERIARE IR
receive dividends as declared from time to time ZIRE - WEESRERERHONRA
and are entitled to one vote per share at RARNE LR—R - ;A B
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares RARB 2 FAEEZRRFH
rank equally with regard to the Company’s i o
residual assets.
(ii) Issue of shares (i) BITRG

Pursuant to placing agreements dated 11 April
2007 and 12 July 2007, 133,000,000 and
159,980,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each were issued to an independent third party
at HK$0.16 and HK$0.18 each for a
consideration of HK$21,280,000 and
HK$28,796,000 respectively. Of the total
consideration of HK$50,076,000, HK$2,930,000
was credited to share capital and the balance
of HK$47,146,000 was credited to share
premium account.
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(B = BEHN

29. Capital and Reserves (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Share capital (Continued)

(iii)

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share

29.

| Statements B1 7% R & B &+

AR T R)

BAR R g (&)
() B& (&)
(iii) RAEEAKE MR AKITERRE

options at balance sheet date Z 1R
2008 2007
Exercise Number Number
price —ZETENF —TTLHF
Exercise period TR TEE B Eogs
5 January 2004 to 4 January 2009 HK$0.486 — 5,400,000
—EENF-AABE_ZETNAF-AMNA 0.4867% JT
2 September 2004 to 1 September 2009 HK$0.489 1,000,000 1,000,000
—EENMFENA_HE_ZTTNAFNLA—AH 0.489/% 7T
10 September 2004 to 3 November 2013 HK$0.512 10,000,000 10,000,000
—ETENFNAT+RE_ZE—=F+—H=H 0.512/ 7T
20 May 2005 to 19 May 2010 HK$0.534 800,000 800,000
T RFRAA-THE-ZE—ZTFRA+NA 0.534% 7T
6 September 2005 to 5 September 2010 HK$0.487 12,890,000 12,890,000
—EERFNAANHE_Z—ZTFNAAA 0.487% 7T
24,690,000 30,090,000

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company. Further details of
these options are set out in note 28 to the financial
statements.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share premium reserve

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands, the fund in the share premium
account of the Company is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the different
between the nominal value of the ordinary
shares issued by the Company and the
aggregate of the share capital and share
premium of the subsidiaries acquired by the
Company through exchange of shares under a
group reorganisation scheme on 4 November
2003. Further details are set out in the
Company’s prospectus dated 10 November
2003.

11‘%Hﬂéﬁ%%ﬁ/\%ﬂTm@% i
ZAN/N cREBREZE—TH
%%ﬁﬁéﬂﬂ“*ﬁi‘%ﬁ]‘?% o

(d) RHEHEERBEW

(i) KGEEFE

BERSHSARE (EIER])
ARARBMDRERZEE A DI
%$ AR ER - f@#%%ﬁf@f
DK BB EE - AARAIRE
EI%%?%%EEEPEW:JJHEEMEE
B

(i) BORE

EHFEEEAR BT AR
MEEARGRER-_ZZT=F
+—ANBZzSEEHRTEEZE
x%k@%%k%%“ﬁh$&
k@ﬁﬁﬂ%Z#ﬁ —
BN N —EE= ¢+f
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

29.

Capital and Reserves (Continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprise of all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign
subsidiaries. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with accounting policies set out in
note 2(q).

The share-based payment reserve represents the
fair value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted to the eligible
participants of the Share Option Scheme
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in note
2(m)(ii).

PRC statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing
the PRC enterprises, certain of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries, which are wholly foreign-owned
enterprises, are required to allocate at least 10%
of their after-tax profit but before dividend
distribution to the general reserve until the
reserve has reached 50% of their registered
capital. The general reserve can only be used,
upon approval by the relevant authority, to
offset accumulated losses or increase capital.
Appropriation to general reserve during the year
amounted to approximately HK$340,000 (2007:
HK$27,000). The enterprise expansion fund can
only be used to increase capital upon approval
by the relevant authority. Appropriation to
enterprise expansion fund is at the discretion
of the board of directors of the PRC subsidiaries.
There was no appropriation during the year
(2007: HK$Nil).

The staff welfare and bonus fund can only be
used for the welfare of the PRC subsidiaries’
employees. Appropriation to the staff welfare
and bonus fund is at the discretion of the board
of directors of the PRC subsidiaries. For Hong
Kong reporting purposes, this appropriation is
charged to expenses and included in creditors
and accrued charges in the consolidated
financial statements.

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

(B = BEHAN - BHUBTIIR)

29.

B KA (FE

(d)

REMEEREN (H)

(iii)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

29.

Capital and Reserves (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2008 and 2007, the aggregate amount
of reserves is not available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company as computed in
accordance with the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands.

Capital management

The Group’s primarily objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes judgements to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors
its capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-
adjusted capital ratio. For this purpose the Group
defines net debt as total debt (which includes bank
loans, trade payables, other payables and accrued
charges, amounts due to subsidiaries and obligation
under finance leases) less cash and cash equivalents.
Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity.

During 2008, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from 2007, was to maintain the net-debt-
to adjusted capital ratio at the lower end of the range
9% to 10%. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio,
the Group may issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets
to reduce debt.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

29. Capital and Reserves (Continued) 29. BARK G (&
(f) Capital management (Continued) (f) EXEE (&)
The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31 March R-BENFRZFZLF=A=+—
2008 and 2007 was as follows: HZEBFREEHEEARLENT !
The Group The Company
rEE 2N
2008 2007 2008 2007
ZEENF _TTLF ZBENF _TTLF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET F#ETT FET
Current liabilities: MENEE !
Bank loans, secured HITER - BEA 22,131 10,110 — —
Trade payables e E B RIE 15,004 16,312 — —
Other payables and H & 5RIE
accrued charges REt &R 21,699 22,827 810 939
Amounts due to subsidiaries J& <1 BT /B8 2 B 3R IE — — 4,164 4,903
Obligation under finance leases Bt & f & & & 302 834 — —
59,136 50,083 4,974 5,842
Non-current liabilities: FERBEE:
Obligation under finance leases g% & M & & i — 232 — —
Total debt (ECLEGE: 59,329 50,315 4,974 5,842
Less: Cash and cash o BRekBES
equivalents ZEY (50,493)  (20,533) (51) (314)
Net debt B FEHE 8,836 29,782 4,923 5,528
Total equity gk 86,207 25,708 55,134 7,109
Loan and interest payable ERN—%ZFF
to a director EREHE — 5,585 — 5,585
Adjusted capital BHABER 86,207 31,293 55,134 12,694
Net debt-to-adjusted B FEY
capital ratio RAREGARLER 10% 95% 9% 44%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ([ 2 & 85N - B TTFIR)

Financial Instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group's business. These
risks are limited by the Group’s financial management
policies and practices described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables, amounts due from related
parties and cash and cash equivalents. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposure to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Cash and cash equivalents are normally placed at
financial institutions that have sound credit rating.

For trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. Trade receivables are due
within 30 to 60 days from the date of billing.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The default risk of the industry and country
in which customers operate also has an influence on
credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the balance sheet
date, the Group has a certain concentration of credit
risk as 30% (2007: 25%) of the total trade receivables
was due from the Group’s five largest customers.

As at 31 March 2008, other receivables comprise
principally advances to business partners, prepayment
for the set up of new slimming projects in the PRC,
advances to staff, trade deposits, prepayment for the
acquisition of a trademark totalling to HK$21,529,000
(2007: HK$5,743,000). Should these parties default
in settling the payments and/or providing services,
the Group may suffer financial losses. However, the
Group’s directors consider that these amounts are
fully recoverable.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
balance sheet after deducting any impairment
allowance.
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30.

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and other receivables are set out in note 19.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the Company’s board when
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
and the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities
which are based on the contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments, computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the
Group and the Company can be required to pay:
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(B = BEHRN - BUBTIIR)

30. Financial Instruments (Continued) 30. /T H (&)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) FBESER (&)
(i) The Group (i) *&£H
2008 2007

“RRNE “ERLE
Total Within Total Within -~ More than
contractual as 1 year contractual as Tyears 1 year but
undiscounted oron undiscounted oron less than
Carrying  cash flow demand Camyjing ~ cash flow demand 2 years
amount REBEER 15/ amount RERR SR 1R 155k
REE EANEE  ZEIR BHE SENEE  JEEX AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
Thx Thx Thx TEL THIL Thi AL
Bank loans, secured RITEH - REA 0,131 2130 @13 10,110 (10110 (10,110) -
Trade payables ENE73E 15,004 (15,00 (15,004) 16,312 (16,312) (16,312) -
Other payables and accrued charges £ ft & 5B R et B A 21,699 (21699 (21,699) 2807 (22,807) (22,827) -

Loan and interest payable Ef-2E2ER
0 a director RHIE - - - 5,585 (5,585) (5,585) =
Obligation under finance leases ~ BAH E&Z 30 (302 (302) 1,054 (1,066) (834) (23
59,136 (59,136) (59,136) 55,888 (55,900) (55,668) (232)
(i) The Company (i) ZE2na
2008 2007
BB\ ZEEtF
Total Within Total Within
contractual as 1 year contractual as 1 years
undiscounted oron undiscounted oron
Carrying  cash flow demand Carrying cash flow demand
amount REHEBLR 15/ amount RERBES R 15/
REE EBRNEE  ZEETR BEE SBANEE  IEEX
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FiEx FEx TEx FET FET FET
Other payables and accrued charges ~ EMERFAREHER 810 (810) (810) 939 (939) (939)
Loan and interest payable to a director B —#EZEF R F 2 - - - 5,585 (5,585) (5,585)
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERHEAARE 4,164 (4,164) (4,164) 4,903 (4,903) (4903)
4,974 (4,974) (4,974) 11,427 (11,427) (11,427)
(c) Interest rate risk (o) F=ME K

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from
bank deposits, bank loans and loan payable to a
director. Borrowings issued at variable rates and at
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
The Group does not use financial derivatives to hedge
against the interest rate risk. The Group’s interest
rate profile as monitored by management is set out
in (i) below.

AEEZANXARIZELEBRTE

A |ITER
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30. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(B = BEHAN - BHUBTIIR)

30. &1 H (&

() REE (&)

(i) Interest rate profile (i) FEAEHE
The following table details the interest rate TRAMRNEBRAARIRNGEE
profile of the Group’s and the Company’s net A& %5 (A B <5t & &R R
borrowings (being interest-bearing financial TR 2FEEE -
liabilities less bank deposits) at the balance sheet
date.
The Group KEE
2008 2007
—EENF —EELEF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate  HK$'000 rate HK$'000
BERFI= FET BERE FET
Variable rate deposits: SR
Bank deposits RIT 17K 0.59% 41,009 0.62% 17,717
Fixed rate borrowings: ELEEE
Bank loans, secured RITER - FEA 6.57% (22,131) 5.99% (10,110)
Loan and interest EBRN—%ES
payable to a director BERRFE N/ATE A — 5% (5,585)
Total net deposits FHOFBRE 18,878 2,022
The Company AT
2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate  HK$'000 rate HK$'000
BRI = FET BEENE F&T
Fixed rate borrowings: EEMEE
Loan and interest payable Bt —%=%=
to a director EREFE N/ATE B — 5% (5,585)
Total net borrowings BEFEE — (5,585)

102
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ([ 2 & 85N - B TTFIR)

30. Financial Instruments (Continued) 30. £/ T A (4%&)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) () FMERAER (&)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (ii) BBE D

At 31 March 2008, it is estimated that a general RZZFZNF=A=+—H '
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest qu Il =& X }EJ:ﬂ'/TE}HOOﬂE
rates, with all other variables held constant, B BRERFTAEE M 1
would decrease/increase the Group’s profit and DRI D15 ﬂﬂﬁ’i IZE’f'J
the Company’s loss after tax by approximately RRA A2 BRTR 1% B 4)189,000%
HK$189,000 and HK$Nil (2007: HK$20,000 and TREERXT(ZZEZ L F !
HK$56,000) respectively. Other components of 20, OOO}%ﬁ:&% 000 7T) © HAh
equity would not be affected (2007: HK$Nil) by EaBo e RS gge
the changes in interest rates. (Z2ZTL£F  THTL) °

The sensitivity analysis above has been B E S AT T R AR B 2R & g
determined assuming that the change in interest EREEREERBEAREZ
rates had occurred at the balance sheet date BEEZITESRM T A ZFIR
and had been applied to the exposure to interest [RB i EETE o 100 B FH KT E
rate risk for non-derivative financial instruments BESHT— i B 71 A7 A =& Ay
in existence at that date. The 100 basis point EEEH M —TETLHF
increase or decrease represents management’s Thiz AE R EXEEIT DT »

assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next
annual balance sheet date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2007.

(d) Foreign currency risk (d) HhEEE R
The Group is not exposed to currency risk as most AR AHHHEE - WA - BERFEXZD
sale, income, purchases and expenses are INBBER 2L ES BB - RS
denominated in the functional currency of the B mAREERR -

operations to which they relate.

(e) Fair values (e) AFHE
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not FESRMTANKREER-_TETNFR
materially different from their fair value as at 31 T LF=RA= ‘f’—ElZR RIS
March 2008 and 2007. BEAEREZ&HIK
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ([ 2 & 85N - 5B TTFIR)

31. Commitments 31. HAE
(a) Capital commitment outstanding at 31 March 2008 (@) RZZEZENF=A=+—HEEMAR
not provided for in the financial statements were as MBmRBEZERAERNT !
follows:
The Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENE ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHE T
Authorised and contracted for EEERAD
— capital injection into a subsidiary — A i B 2 8F A B K — 9,739
— acquisition of fixed assets —WEEEEE 190 —
190 9,739
(b) At 31 March 2008, the total future minimum lease by R-ZEZENFE=A=+—H ' TAJHH

payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

ZREMEZARKERSEMNAT

The Group
rEE
2008 2007

—EENEF —TETLF
Properties Equipment Properties Equipment
LS RB % B
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET FET FE T
Within 1 year 1" 16,146 233 9,193 —
After 1 year but within 5 years 1 {E56 R 19,296 104 14,417 —
After 5 years S5 1& 14,219 — 3,579 —
49,661 337 27,189 —

The Group is the lessee in respect of certain properties
and items of equipment under operating leases. The
leases run for an initial period of one to ten years,
with an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.
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(B = BEHRN - BUBTIIR)

Contingent Liabilities 32. Bk HRAfE
As at 31 March 2008, the Company R=-ZBZBENF=ZA=+—8 ' &AA7F
(i)  has issued a corporate guarantee approximately () ERET—HMBARZRITHER—
amounting to HK$16,618,000 (equivalent to fER1TIR £ 4716,618,000/8 7T (FHE R
RMB15,000,000) (see note 22) to a bank in respect AR #15,000,0007T) (B HE22) 22
of banking facilities granted to a subsidiary (31 March AER(CEEELF=A=+—H ' %
2007: HK$Nil); and BT Rk
(i)  has given a corporate guarantee to a finance company (i) BEmIRT—HEHEBRR41,748,000%
in respect of the finance lease facilities of T (ZZEZLF : 1,748,000/ T) 2 @
approximately HK$1,748,000 (2007: HK$1,748,000) BEHEREMmMR—RIEARRERF
granted to a subsidiary. R -
The guarantees were issued by the Company at nil BREAAAFEEEL - KHWFERAFR
consideration. The transactions were not at arm’s length, BT - BEMER SR A FRAEST » 70
and it is not possible to measure reliably the fair value of TR RIBEE B E£RIFE35F [T A !
these transactions in accordance with HKAS 39, Financial BRRGEIAIEHAEAZZERFIZAFAE
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, had they been Hit - EREFARIIECREBERZEAT
at arm’s length. Accordingly, the guarantees have not been B2 o
accounted for as financial liabilities and measured at fair
value.
As at the balance sheet date, the directors do not consider REEH  BEFERE ' BEEEERRAR
it is probable that a claim will be made against the Company AIRHEBERZAEETK REER - A2
under any of the guarantees. The maximum liability of the ARBEEHERZEZSBEAMBA AR
Company at the balance sheet date under the guarantees B2 @& 16,893,000 L (ZEZ£F | TF
issued is the facilities drawn down by the subsidiaries of JT) °
HK$16,893,000 (2007: HK$NiIl).
Material Related Party Transactions and Balances 33, HRBEN LI 5 K5
(a) Key management personnel remuneration () FEEBEAEMS
Remuneration for key management personnel of the B OB EARARES RWE108T
Group are the Company’s directors as disclosed in BEEEFALIZASBEEEETEAS
note 9 and the highest paid employees as disclosed ZMeT
in note 10, is as follows:
2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and other benefitss# & ~ 285 & £ th 13 F 5,752 6,605
Contributions to defined contributions 5% 7€ #t 7% iR R 5t &1 £t 5%
retirement plan 60 69
5,812 6,674

Total remuneration is included in “Staff costs” (see
note 7(b)).

HMamat ATE I A] (R HaE
7(b)) °
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33. Material Related Party Transactions and Balances —33. HKBHN 13 5 R 4556k (&)
(Continued)
(b) Financing arrangement (b) MEZH
The Group
and the Company
AEBRAQT
2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loan and interest payable EH—2E=S
to a director (note 24) ERRAE (K F24) — 5,585
(c) Other related party transactions (c) HMBEEALRS

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group
entered into the following material related party

REBE-_ZTZN\F=A=+—HItFE
N REEETUTEABEALR

transactions: '
The Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
i F FERT FET
Loan interest expense paid EN—BREZFER
to a director PNz (i) 32 220
Sale of goods to a minority M2 HAR R
shareholder $HE S m (if) 5,180 11
Note: Hfat -
(i) Interest expense was paid by the Group in connection (i) MERES I AEEGEN —BESTE

with the loan payable to a director (note 24).

(i) Sales to a minority shareholder were made at similar
terms as the Group grants to other customers.

Balances with related parties are disclosed in the balance
sheet date in notes 17, 20 and 24 to the financial
statements.

Comparative Figures
{

As a result of adopting HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures, and the amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation
of financial statements: Capital disclosures, certain
comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with
changes in disclosures in the current year and to show
separately comparative amounts in respect of items disclosed
for the first time in 2008. Further details are disclosed in
note 4.
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34.

o

It

Comparative Figures (Continued)

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted as a result
of the correction of prior period error as set out in note 3.

Subsidy income from the PRC government, net gain on
disposal of property, plant and equipment and other loss/
income which are incidental to the main revenue generating
activities, were included in as “Other revenue” in 2007. To
conform with the current’s year’s presentation, income was
reclassified as “Other net income” in the comparative
figures. The directors consider that this revised presentation
more appropriately reflects the nature of these items.

Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The methods, estimates and judgements the directors used
in applying the Group’s accounting policies have a
significant impact on the Group’s financial position and
operating results. Some of the accounting policies require
the Group to apply estimates and judgements, on matters
that are inherently uncertain. The critical accounting
judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies are
described below.

(a) Depreciation

The Group management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charge for the
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of the property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as a result
of technical innovations and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycles. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives
are less than previously estimated lives, or it will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

(B = BEHRN - BUBTIIR)
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S8

Accounting Estimates and Judgements (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairments

In considering the impairment loss that may be
required for certain property, plant and equipment,
investments in subsidiaries and goodwill, recoverable
amount of the asset needs to be determined. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling
price and the value in use. It is difficult to precisely
estimate selling price because quoted market prices
for these assets may not be readily available. In
determining the value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the asset are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgement relating
to items such as level of turnover and amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is
reasonable approximation of recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of items such
as turnover and operating costs.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are
assessed and provided based on the directors’ regular
review of ageing analysis and evaluation of
collectability. A considerable level of judgement is
exercised by the directors when assessing the credit
worthiness and past collection history of each
individual customer.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment loss
would affect the operating results in the year and in
future years.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions
and interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment
of such transactions is reconsidered periodically to
take into account all changes in tax legislation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deduction differences. As
those deferred tax assets can only be recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future profit will
be available against which the unused tax credit can
be utilised, management’s judgement is required to
assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed and
additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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35.

Accounting Estimates and Judgements (Continued)
(d) Inventory provision

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged
inventories analyses, projections of expected future
saleability of goods and management experience and
judgement. Based on this review, write-down of
inventories will be made when the carrying amounts
of inventories decline below their estimated net
realisable value. Due to changes in customers’
performance, actual saleability of goods may be
different from estimation and profit or loss could be
affected by differences in this estimation.

(e) Share-based payments

The estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted to employees measured by professional values
based on the Black Scholes model with modification
to reflect the impact of vesting period and exercise
pattern on the option value. The accuracy of the above
estimations could affect the amount of share-based
payments transactions recognised in the income
statement.

Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and
Interpretations Issued but Not Yet Effective for the Year

Ended 31 March 2005

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 March 2008 and which have not been adopted
in these financial statements.

35.
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36. Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and — 36. #BE_FEFNE=ZH=1—HILFEZECH

Interpretations Issued but Not Yet Effective for the Year i 18 i A 2 3 Z AEFT AR ~ F7 2 Rl K it #E m]
Ended 31 March 2008 (Continued) BEEHZHE (&)

Of these developments, the following relate to matters that i ZE A - LAR &R g B AN B R & B
may be relevant to the Group's operations and financial BHmExEBE 2 EIE

statements:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

BTSEHERZE

Rz astBEEXR
Amendment to Presentation of financial statements: 1 January 2009
HKAS 1 Comprehensive revision including requiring —EENF—HA—H
BB ERIE 15 a statement of comprehensive income
(EFT7A) M mEiz 2y BRERGEWERZZHER
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing costs 1 January 2009
BB B ERIF 235 BEE KA —ZTENF-H—H
(£ 15 7T)
HKAS 27 Consolidated and separate financial 1 July 2009
BB G ERIFE 2758 statements: Consequential amendments —EENFLA—H
arising from amendments to HKFRS 3
FERBLVB®RE  BAVBREELE3R
(BETAR) B4 2 HHEEIER]
HKAS 28 Investment in associates: Consequential 1 July 2009
BB AERIE 285 amendments arising from amendments to —ETNFLHA—H
HKFRS 3
REEERAZIRE | BEMBHIHRELENEIR
(BFTAR) B4 2 HHEEIERT
HKFRS 2 Share-based payment: Amendment relating 1 January 2009
ERYTERELERE 29 to vesting conditions and cancellations —ETNF—-—HF—H
PRy 5% A R 5 B IR 1 e S 8 2 IR RT
HKFRS 3 Business combinations: Comprehensive 1 July 2009
EBMBREEDZE3H  revision on applying the acquisition method —EENFLA—H
EBEH BRAWESHEZZEER
HKFRS 8 Operating segments 1 January 2009
BEMGHMELERNESR KL —ZENF—-H—H

The directors have confirmed that the Group is in the ZEFEWHER @ ANEBIEEFELABEIA - $T%ER]
process of making an assessment of what the impact of R¥FRELAEXEAHEEREECFE 25
these amendments, new standards and new interpretations  AN&EER AHEM Ll S IBBFIA ~ SR R 7E
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far ¥ AEE 2 Q& XEE R B ABKRERNZE 2 #
it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to &K °

have a significant impact on the Group’s results of

operations and financial position.
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g ] A g £
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28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong
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Nanyang Commercial Bank
Yaumatei Branch

309 Nathan Road
Kowloon

The Bank of East Asia Limited
One Peking Branch

Shop 202 & 203, L/F

One Peking

1 Peking Road
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Website
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